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CONVENIENCE TRANSLATION INTO ENGLISH OF INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT ORIGINALLY ISSUED IN TURKISH

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

To the General Assembly of Kocaer Celik Sanayi ve Ticaret Anonim Sirketi

lidated fi

A- Report on the audit of the ial sta

1-Opinion

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Kocaer Celik Sanayi ve Ticaret Anonim Sirketi (the “Company” or “Kocaer Celik™) and its subsidiaries
(collectively referred to as the “Group”), which comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 December 2022, and the consolidated statement of
profit or loss and other comprehensive income, consolidated statement of changes in equity and consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and
notes 1o the consolidated financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the accompanying consolidated financial statements present fairly,

in all material respects, the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31

December 2022 and its consolidated financial performance and its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Turkish Financial Reporting

Standards (“TFRSs”).

2- Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (ISAs) that are part of Turkish Standards on Auditing issued by the Public Oversight
Accounting and Auditing Standards Authority (the “POA™). Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s responsibilities for the
audit of the consolidated financial statements section of our report. We are independent of the Group in accordance with the International Code of Ethics for
Professional Accountants (including International Independence Standards) (IESBA Code) together with the ethical requirements regarding independent audit in
regulations issued by POA that are relevant to our audit of the consolidated financial statements in Turkey, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in
accordance with these requirements and the IESBA Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our

opinion.

3-Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current
period. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming the auditor’s opinion thereon, and

we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

Key Audit Matter

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

Fair value risk and cash flow hedge accounting (Note 12)

In accordance with the contracts made by the Group management, Kocaer Celik
applies cash flow hedge transactions on its consolidated balance sheet to manage
foreign currency risk due to securities issued at fixed rate and loans and advances
at floating rate with cross-currency swap transactions.

In this context, the Group applied cash flow hedge accounting arising from fair
value risk with unrecognised firm commitment contracts due to highly probable
forecast transactions.

We considered fair value risk and cash flow hedge accounting are material to
consolidated financial statements due to following matters:

As of 31 December 2022, losses on fair value hedge transactions arising from
foreign currency risk which is presented under assets is amounting to TL
149.090.954 and losses on cash flow hedge transactions presented under equity
is amounting to TL 190.938.728 are material to Kocaer Celik’s consolidated
financial statements.

The criteria for the application of the hedge accounting include defining,
documenting and regularly testing the effectiveness of the hedge accounting
transactions. Due to the fact that hedge accounting has complex structure and
requires technical calculations, we considered this to be one of the key audit
matters.

The audit procedures for testing hedge accounting included below:

We have evaluated and examined the documentation and appropriatencss of
hedging relationships of cash flow hedge and fair value hedge transactions and
the main reasons of hedge accounting including strategy and aims determined by
the Group management regarding the application of hedge accounting.

We have evaluated the effectiveness of hedge accounting. In addition, we have
tested whether the gains/losses on the fair value of the income planned to be
obtained in the subsequent periods, the gains/losses on the fair value of the loans
is between 70% and 130%.

We have assessed the compliance of the sales subject to the cash flow hedge
accounting with the budget approved by the Group management and the
contracts regarding these sales.

We have controlled and evaluated the compliance of the methods applied in the
calculation of costs regarding contracts applied on hedge accounting
transactions,

We have controlled the repayment schedule of the Euro and USD loans which
are also tested with loan agreements through bank reconciliation statements. We
have evaluated in what extent month loan repayment schedule meet the monthly
sales.

We have controlled the mathematical accuracy and recognition of the accounting
records on the hedge accounting.

Testing the adequacy of the disclosures in the consolidated financial statements
in relation to the fair value risk and cash flow hedge accounting,

We had no material findings related to the valuation o
flow hedge accounting as a result of these procedures
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Key Audit Matter

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

Fair value of property, plant and equipment (Note 18)

As disclosed in Note 18, the consolidated financial statements as of 31 December
2022 include property, plant and equipment carried at fair value amounting to TL
2.423.302.873 which includes land, buildings, plant, machinery and equipment,
motor vehicles and fumiture and fixtures. Aforementioned amount represent a

We performed the following procedures in relation to the fair value of property,
plant and equipment:

We have controlled the frequency of revaluation of property, plant and

significant portion of the Kocaer Celik’s total assets, equipment and its compliance in accordance with the TAS 16 “Property, plant
and equipment”.
Fair values of property, plant and equipment of the Group are recognized

according to appraisal reports issued by independent experts. In accordance with the meetings and discussions made with the Group and

independent appraisal experts, we have not observed that there is no significant
and imegular change incurred in the fair value of the property, plant and

We considered fair values of property, plant and equipment are material to cigiipneat

consolidated financial statements due to following matters:
In accordance with the meetings and discussions made with the Group and
independent appraisal experts, we have not observed that there is no significant
and irregular change incurred in the assumptions and factors used in the fair
value calculation of the property, plant and equipment.

The determination of fair valuation study includes data that have unobservable in
the market and is determined by using an independent experts,

The calculation of fair value is affected by current market conditions,
We have compared and assessed the comparable sales m® unit values of the
property, plant and equipment located in the area close to the land owned by the
Group and subject to revaluation at the end of 2022 by the independent appraisal
experts appointed by the Group, with the Group's property, plant and equipment
carrying values. In addition we have controlled whether impairment on property,
plant and equipment incurred during the reporting period.

Accordingly, the amount and nature of property, plant and equipment are
material to the consolidated financial statements.

We have tested title deed records ownership interests of property, plant and
equipment which includes land and buildings.

Testing the adequacy of the disclosures in the consolidated financial statements
in relation to the fair value of property, plant and equipment,

We had no material findings related to the fair value of property, plant and
equipment as a result of these procedures.

4- Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Consolidated Financial Statements

The Group management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated financial statements in accordance with TFRS, and for such
internal control as management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as
applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Group or to cease
operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Group’s financial reporting process.
5- Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements
Responsibilities of independent auditors in an independent audit are as follows:

Our aim is to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error, and to issue an independent auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance expressed as a result of an independent audit conducted in
accordance with ISAs is a high level of assurance but does not guarantee that a material misstatement will always be detected. Misstatements can arise from fraud or
error. Misstatements are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the cconomic decisions of users taken
on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an independent audit conducted in accordance with ISAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We
also:

. Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement in the consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit
procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations or the override of internal control.

] Assess the internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

. Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures made by ma.l‘lgggglin:.
i 3 R N

. Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence ‘obtained, Wwhether a

material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group's ability to continue as a going concern. If we

conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to thi da,;é'of our ..
independent auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going concem, fl." " i
‘ !
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. Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities or business activities within the Group to express an
opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the Group audit. We remain solely
responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings,
including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence. We also communicate
with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the maiters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit of the consolidated
financial statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes
public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse
consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

B- Other Responsibilities Arising from Regulatory Requirements

1) No matter has come to our attention that is significant according to subparagraph 4 of Article 402 of Turkish Commercial Code (“TCC”) No. 6102 and that causes
us 1o believe that the Group’s bookkeeping activities concerning the period from | January to 31 December 2022 period are not in compliance with the TCC and
provisions of the Group’s articles of association related to financial reporting.

2) In accordance with subparagraph 4 of Article 402 of the TCC, the Board of Directors submitted the necessary explanations to us and provided the documents
required within the context of our audit.

3) According to the 5th article of the “Corporate Governance Communiqué” numbered 11-17.1, “Partnerships that apply to the Board of Directors for the public
offering of their shares for the first time and / or to be traded on the stock exchange will be subject to the liabilities of the partners in the third group until the list
specified in the second paragraph is announced, it must ensure that the necessary compliance as of the date of the first general meeting to be held after the shares begin
to be traded on the stock exchange”. The Group has not yet held its first General Assembly after its shares began to be traded on the stock exchange. As of 31
December 2022, the Group's Board of Directors has not established the system and authorized committee stipulated in article 378. According to the Turkish
Commercial Code (“TCC”) No. 6102 and pursuant to the fourth paragraph of Article 398 of the Turkish Commercial Code No. 6102 (“TCC”), an independent
auditor's report on the Early Risk 1dentification System and Committee, has not been prepared and presented to the Group's Board of Directors.

The engagement partner responsible for the audit resulting in this independent auditor’s report is Metin ETKIN.

GURELI YEMINLi MALI MUSAVIRLIK VE BAGIMSIZ DENETIM HIZMETLERI A.S.
An Independent Member of BAKER TILLY INTERNATIONAL
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CONVENIENCE TRANSLATION INTO ENGLISH OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS ORIGINALLY
ISSUED IN TURKISH

KOCAER CELIK SANAY[ VE TICARET ANONIM SIRKETI
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2022 AND 2021

(Amounts on tables expressed in Turkish Lira (“TL™) unless otherwise indicated. )

Audited Audited
Current Prior
Period Period
Notes 31.12.2022 31.12.2021

ASSETS
Current Assets 4.243.789.837  2.125.444.000
Cash and Cash Equivalents 6 466.548.977 310435432
Financial Investments 7 480.921.554 -
Trade Receivables 10 1.291.773.490 521.687.602
Third Parties 10 1.291.533.655 521.0560.596
Related Parties 10-37 239.835 631.006
Other Recevables I 157.955.006 492.104.437
Third Parties I¥) 106088178 55.236.021
Related Parties 11-37 51.866.828 436.868.416
Derivative Instruments 12 78.810.433 139.664.247
[nventories 13 1.544.818.657 625.708.360
Prepaid Expenses 15 02.658.501 35,843,922
Third Parties 92.638.507 35.843.922
Other Current Assets 26 130.303.219 -
Non-Current Assets 3.057.687.357  1.335.406.875
Other Receivables 11 2.138.417 260.544
Third Parties 11 2138417 260.544
Derivative Instruments 12 70.280.521 96.456.779
Financial Investments 7 1.959 -
Investments Accounted for Using the Equity Method 16 - 128.963
Right of Use Assets 14 103.362.290 21.453.805
Investment Properties &4 156.695.000 59.395.000
Property, Plant and Equipment 18 2717.137.748  1.139.322.031
Intangible Assets 19 6.824.557 17.190.833
Other Intangible Assers 19 6.824.557 17.190.833
Deterred Tax Assets 39 1.246.865 1.198.920
TOTAL ASSETS 7.301.477.194  3.460.850.875

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.




CONVENIENCE TRANSLATION INTO ENGLISH OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS ORIGINALLY

ISSUED IN TURKISH
KOCAER CELIK SANAYI VE TICARET ANONIM SIRKETI

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS
AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2022 AND 2021
(Amounts on tables expressed in Turkish Lira ("TL™) unless otherwise indicated. )

LIABILITIES
Current Liabilities
Short-Term Borrowings
Short Term Portion of Long Term Borrowings
Trade Payables
Third Parties
Related Parties
Employee Benefits
Other Payables
Third Parties
Related Parties
Deferred Income
Third Parties
Current Income Tax Liabilities
Short Term Provisions
Other Short Term Provisions
Short Term Provisions for Employee Benefits
Other Current Liabilities

Non-Current Liabilities
Long Term Borrowings
Long Term Provisions
Long Term Provisions for Employvee Benefits
Deferred Tax Liabilities

EQUITY

Equity Holders of the Parent

Paid-in Share Capital

Share Premium

Accumulated Other Comprehensive Income or Expenses not to be reclassified to Profit or
Loss

Accumulated Other Comprehensive Income or Expenses to be reclassitied to Profit or Loss
Business combinations under common control

Restricted Reserves

Retained Eamings

Profit for the Period

Non-Controlling Interests

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND EQUITY

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.

Notes

Audited
Current
Period
31.12.2022

Audited
Prior
Period
31.12.2021

3.551.870.638
1.499.562.711
159.068.429
854.168.945
833.047.794
1.121.051
20.080.327
47.476.704
43.208.067
2.268.637
933.044.943
Y33.044.943
24.130.958
14.335.619
10.004.070
4.331.549
2.002

462.808.680
351.258.326
24.629.708
24.629.708
86.920.646

3.286.797.876
3.275.605.648
657.570.000
119.699.349

1.724.049.690
(158.586.913)
(16.001.044)
29.105.331
168.525.704
751.243.531
11.192.228

2.116.975.759
708.933.992
669.143.779
437.769.734
437.121.068
048716
7.519.080
47.432.228
34.672.413
12.759.815
217.428.541
217428541
18.649.841
8.617.341
6.367.953
2.249.388
1.481.173

410.497.056
381.115.829
9.382.749
9.382.749
19.998.478

933.378.060
928.655.276
212.000.000

551.048.719
(138.023.434)
(16.001.044)
29.105.331
157.941.274
132.584.430
4.722.784

7.301.477.194

3.460.850.875




CONVENIENCE TRANSLATION INTO ENGLISH OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS ORIGINALLY

ISSUED IN TURKISH
KOCAER CELIK SANAYI VE TICARET ANONIM SIRKETI

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF INCOME
FOR THE YEARS ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022 AND 2021

(Amounts on tables expressed in Turkish Lira (“TL”) unless otherwise indicated )

Revenue
Cost of Sales (-)
Gross profit from non-finance sector operations

GROSS PROFIT

Marketing, Sales and Distribution Expenses (-)

General Administrative Expenses (-)

Research and Development Expenses (-)

Other Operating Income

Other Operating Expenses (-)

OPERATING PROFIT

Share of profit/loss of investments accounted for using the equity method
Gains from investment activities

Losses trom investment activities (-)

OPERATING PROFIT BEFORE FINANCIAL INCOME/(EXPENSE)
Financial Income

Financial Expense (-)

PROFIT BEFORE TAX

Tax income/(expense)

- Current period tax expense

- Deferred tax income/expense

PROFIT FOR THE PERIOD FROM CONTINUING OPERATIONS

PROFIT FOR THE PERIOD

Attributable to:

Non-Controlling Interests

Equity Holders of the Parent

Earnings Per Share

Earnings Per Share From Continuing Operations

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements,

Notes
28
28

29-30
26-30
29-30

36

Audited Audited
Current Prior
Period Period
01.01.2022 01.01.2021
31.12.2022 31.12.2021

9.418.465.603
(7.255.786.600)
2.162.678.997

4.216.306.544
(3.364.737.035)
851.569.509

2.162.678.997

851.569.509

(564.208.421)
(83.409.036)
(2.911.498)
77.959.894
(186.017.579)
1.404.092.357

(280.664.456)
(33.026.377)
(1.806.951)
S12.111.934
(86.266.404)
961.917.255

217.147.385
(129913)
1.621.109.829

53
29.688.367
(887.293)
990.718.382

100.122.223
(908.545.865)
812.686.187

23.604.999
(834.069.235)
180.254.146

(56.942.399)
(140.541.822)

(44.885.893)
(34.547.405)

§3.599.423 (10.335.488)
755.743.788 135.368.253
755.743.788 135.368.253
755.743.788 135.368.253

4.500.257 2.783.823
751.243.531 132.584.430
2.8930 625,3983




CONVENIENCE TRANSLATION INTO ENGLISH OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS ORIGINALLY

ISSUED IN TURKISH
KOCAER CELIK SANAYI VE TICARET ANONIM SIRKETI

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FOR THE YEARS ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022 AND 2021
(Amounts on tables expressed in Turkish Lira (“TL”) unless otherwise indicated.)

PROFIT FOR THE PERIOD
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME:

Items not to be reclassified to profit/loss

Property, plant and equipment revaluation surplus
Gains/(losses) on remeasurements of defined benefit plans
Taxes relating to other comprehensive income not to be
reclassitied to profit/loss

- Deferred tax incomeiexpense (PP&E)

- Deferred tax income/expense (Actuarial)

Items to be reclassified to profit/loss

Currency translation differences

Gains/(losses) on cash flow hedges

Taxes relating to other comprehensive income to be reclassified to profivloss
- Deferred tax income/expense

OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

Attributable to:
Non-Controlling Interests
Equity Holders of the Parent

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.

Notes

36

24

35

Audited Audited
Current Prior
Period Period
01.01.2022 01.01.2021
31.12.2022 31.12.2021
755.743.788 135.368.253
1.050.983.426 297.184.610

1.220.217.017
(11.837.994)

(157.395.597)
(159.763.197)
2.367.600

(18.582.492)
19.613.733
(45.118.177)

337.100.235
(1.768.279)

(35.147.346)
(38.497.197)
349.851

(71.351.178)
14.052.093
(110.913.339)

6.921.952 25.510.068
6.921.952 25.510.068
1.032.400.934 225.833.432
1.788.144.722 361.201.685

1.788.144.722
6.463.699
1.781.681.023

361.201.685
4.189.330
357.012.355
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CONVENIENCE TRANSLATION INTO ENGLISH OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS ORIGINALLY

ISSUED IN TURKISH
KOCAER CELIK SANAYI VE TICARET ANONIM SIRKETI

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022 AND 2021
(Amounts on tables expressed in Turkish Lira (“TL”) unless otherwise indicated )

A) CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

PROFIT FOR THE PERIOD

Profit for the Period from Continuing Operations

Adjustments to reconcile profit for the period to

cash generated from operating activities:

Depreciation and amortisation

Adjustments for Impairment Loss (Reversal)

Adjustments for Receivables Impairment (Reversal)

Adjustments for nventory Impairment (Reversal)

Adjusiments for Other Impairment (Reversal)

Adjustments for Provisions

Adjustments for Provision for Employvee Benefits (Reversal)

Adjustments for Provision for Litigations or Lawsuits, Penalties (Reversal)
Adjustments for Other Provisions (Reversal)

Adjustments for interest income and expenses

Adjustments for Interest Income

Adjustments for Interest Fxpenses

Adjustments for gains/losses on fair value

Adjustments for Undistributed Profits of Investments Accounted for Using the Equity Method
Adjustments for tax income/expense

Adjustments for losses/(gains) on disposal of non-current assets
Adjustments for losses/(gains) on disposal of a subsidiary

Changes in Working Capital

Adjustments for Gains/Losses on Trade Receivables

Adjustments for G osses on Other Receivables Related to Operations
Adjustments for Gains/Losses on Inventories

Adjustments for gams (losses) in prepaid expenses

Adjustments for Gains/Losses on Trade Payables

Adjustments for gains {losses) in payables due o employee benefits
Adjustments for Gains/Losses In Other Payables Related to Operations
Changes in Deferred Income

Changes in other assets related to operations

Changes in other habilities related to operations

Total Cash Flows from Operating Activities

Cash inflows from disposal of other entities or funds or debt instruments
Adjustments for Gains/Losses on provisions for employee benefits

Income taxes refund/(paid)

Net Cash From Operating Activities

B) CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Cash outflows from acquisition of other entities or funds or debt instruments
Cash inflows from sale of property, plant and equipment and intangible asset
Cash outflows from purchase of property, plant and equipment and intangible assets
Cash outflows from purchase of investment properties

Cash outflows trom dividends and other financial instruments

C) CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITES

Cash outflows from share premium and other equity instruments

Cash inflows from borrowings

Cash outflows from payments of lease labilities

Interest Paid/Received, net

D) NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
BEFORE EFFECT OF EXCHANGE RATE CHANGES

EFFECT OF EXCHANGE RATE CHANGES ON CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
Net Increase/(Decrease) in Cash and Cash Equivalents

E) CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT THE BEGINNING OF THE PERIOD
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT THE END OF THE PERIOD

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.

Notes

10
11
13
15
10
20
11
15

Audited Audited
Current Prior
Period Period
01.01.2022 01.01.2021
31.12.2022 31.12.2021
755.743.788 135.368.253
755.743.788 135.368.253
207.440.008 (166.970.674)

67.309.319
(2.429.560)
(2.279.784)

(278.739)
128.963
11.597.891
879613
3636117
2.082.161
173.993.321
(59.662.659)
233.655 980
(95.927.359)

56.942.399
(4.046.003)

(401.546.471)
(767.806.104)
332.271.558
(918.821.558)
(56.814.579)
416.399.161
12.561.247
44.476
715.616.402
(130.303.219)
{4.683.855)
561.637.325

(2.470.648)
(128.216.544)
430.950.133
(888.800.523)
(1.959)
1.848.090
(406.166.797)
(3.558.303)
(480.921.554)
596.299.143
591.250.000
169.771.056
9.239.362
(173.961.275)

51.220.483
8.913.605
8.634.866

278.739

5.950.499
3787638
2.162.861

64.431.407
(17.785.166)
82.216.573
(211.459.518)
(53)
44.885.893
(6.846.074)
(124.066.916)
(660.422.579)
(311.425.164)
{427.170.620)
(356.231.684)
(10.895.536)
267.034.422
2.974.897
20.602.729
126.868.601
30.512.460
(2.692.684)
(692.025.000)
321.750.001
(3.712.035)
(16.649.397)
(390.636.431)
(141.090.676)

152.644.593
(293.735.269)

814.992.068

877.759.363
(633.991)
(62.113.304)

138.448.753 283.264.961

17.632.746 12.632.832
156.081.499 295.897.793
310.435.432 12.219.536
466.516.931 308.117.329




CONVENIENCE TRANSLATION INTO ENGLISH OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS ORIGINALLY
ISSUED IN TURKISH

KOCAER CELIK SANAYI VE TICARET ANONIM SIRKETI

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AS AT AND FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022
(Amounts are expressed in Turkish Lira unless otherwise indicated.)

NOTE 1 - GROUP'S ORGANISATION AND NATURE OF OPERATIONS

Kocaer Celik Sanavi ve Ticaret Anonim Sirketi (“the Company™ or “Kocaer Celik™) was established on 23 December 1984 in Izmir, Aliaga with
the business title of Kocaer Haddecilik Sanavi ve Ticaret Anonim Sirketi, The business title of Kocaer Haddecilik Sanayi ve Ticaret Anonim
Sirkets has been changed to Kocaer Celik Sanayi ve Ticaret Anonim Sirketi on 20 May 2021 and published in Official Gazette numbered 10331,
In 2022, the Company was restructured as engage in business activities iron and steel, transportation. In accordance with the restructuring, by
merging with all its subsidiaries operating in the business activities of iron and steel, transportation and automotive and excluded other
subsidiaries, the Company has a structure that only have iron, steel and transportation.

Kocaer Celik operates its business activities in its production facility in Aliaga, lzmir. Kocaer Celik’s business activties include supplving.
shaping, manufacturing and trading all kinds of iron and steel products, semi-finished products and raw materials,

Turkey’s Izmir region-based Kocaer has annual capacity of 800,000 metric tons of steel, serving many sectors such as; energy, transportation,
mining and tunnel, ship building, agriculture and constructional sectors by supplying customer-oricnted steel products (equal angles, U and €
profiles, [ and H beams, round and deformed bars, mining and tunnelling profiles and fittings, square bars, flat bars) with different sizes, grades
and lengths, as well as carrying out operations for product development, sales & dispatch, import/export and custom clearances.

The registered address of the Kocaer Celik is as follows:
Gumusgay Mahallesi. Menderes Bulvari. No: 45 Merkezetendi/Denizli

The Company has three steel profile production facilities, a galvanisation facility and a service center in Aliaga. In addition, the Company has
branches in Lzmir, Istanbul and Denizli. Besides. Kocaer Celik has foreign operations in the foreign market with its associate, Kocaer Steel UK
LTD (Former title: Mymetal LTD), which was established in England.

The detailed information and registered address of the branches and offices is as follows:

. Istanbul Branch: Levazim Mahallesi Korlu Sokak Zorlu Center Teras Evler No 307 Besiktas / Istanbul.
¢ Aliaga Branch 3: Yeni Foca yolu Gizeri 3. km Horozgedigi Koyii mevkii 19. Cadde No:1 Aliaga / Izmir.
. Aliaga Branch: Yeni Foga volu tzeri 3. km Horozgedigi Koyu mevkii 19. Cadde No:2 Aliaga / [zmir.
- Ahaga Branch 2:Yeni Foga yolu Ozert 2. km Sanayi Caddesi Bozkoy mevkii No 31 Aliaga / [zmir,

. lzmir Alsancak Branch  Akdeniz Mahallesi Sehit Fethibey Caddesi No'55/161 Konak/[zmir

.

As of 31 December 2022 and 2021 the principal sharcholders and their respective shareholding rates in Kocaer Celik are as follows

31.12.2022 31.12.2021
Sharcholders Aftioiiiie %[:/:; Kmouni Sh(i/:;
Hakan KOCALR 520.084.989 79 169.600.000 80
Ali Riza KOCAER - - 42.400.000 20
Other 137.485.011 21 - -
Total share capital 657.570.000 100 212.000.000 100

The initial public offering of the Group was approved with the official eireular on 16.06.2022 and the bulletin numbered 2022/30 of the Capital
Markets Board ("CMB”). The relevant stocks of initial public offering was paid from the share capital amounting to TL 6357.570.000. the group’s
shares amounting to TL 21.500.000 and the remaining TL 34.600.000 was paid from disposal of the shares of the shareholders, with total amount
of TL 56.100.000. The capital increase amounting to TL 424.070.000 was realized from the emission premium that arising from afier the public
initial public offering and was recognised in equity. The capital increase was published in Official Gazette numbered 10715 on 30 November
2022.

The functional breakdown of the subsidiaries (“Subsidiaries™) and the associates (“Associates™) their country of incorporation, effective interests,
nature of business and their respective business segments are as follows:

Country of

Associates incorporation Nature of Business
Yagiz Naklivat San_ve Tic A.S. " Turkey [nternational Road Transport
Kocaer Steel UK LTD (Eski Unvani MYMETAL LTD) < England Wholesale Trade of [ron and Steel Products
Kocaer Steel Ireland Limited (**) Ireland Wholesale Trade of [ron and Steel Products
Investments Accounted for Using the Equity Method Country of

(Subsidiaries) incorporation Nature of Business
Kocaer Metal San.ve Tic A.S ' Turkey Iron and Steel

e R
. - " o ws s . e A R Y
* As of 20 May 2022, Kocaer Metal Sanayi ve Ticaret A'S, has been in liquidation process. The relevant mattegavas publishied=in (f)fhclﬁ“]fgxazcttc
o . i L o Ve
on 26 May 2022 and numbered 10385, Kocaer Metal was not included in the scope consolidation as of ‘]‘ December_ 2022 as 1§3«gnte_r‘tad the
liquidation process and did not have a material impact on the consolidated financial statements. R Ll |

<

¥ L5 i

(**)Kocaer Steel Ireland Limited was established on 23 November 2022 by Kocaer Steel UK LTD and in uded in thes
The share capital of Kocaer Steel Ireland Limited is amounting to EUR 100. The reason of the establishmei of'ﬁgcaé‘h&{g@
N ¢
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CONVENIENCE TRANSLATION INTO ENGLISH OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS ORIGINALLY
ISSUED IN TURKISH

KOCAER CELIK SANAYI VE TICARET ANONIM SIRKETI

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AS AT AND FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022
(Amounts are expressed in Turkish Lira unless otherwise indicared.)

increasing exports in the European market. As of 31 December 2022, Kocaer Steel Ireland Limited is inactive and has not been carrying on any
business or operation.

Country of incorporation, nature of business and respective business segments of the subsidiaries (“Subsidiaries™) and the associates
(“Associates”) are as follows:

- Yagiz Nakhyat San. ve Tic. AS ("Yagiz Naklivat™) was established on 18.08.1993. The registered address of Yagiz Nakliyat is
Menderes Bulvart No 53 Merkez/Denizli. Yagiz Naklivat's business activities include ensuring domestic and international
transportation, cargo. contracting services and commodity trading. Kocaer Celik acquired Yagiz Naklivat in 2018. Yagiz Naklivat has
been consolidated in accordance with the full consolidaiion method. The abovementioned consolidation has been considered as
“business combination under common control” and consolidated retrospectively for the periods presented with pooling of interest
method in scope of TERS 3 standard. Another subsidary of the Kocaer Celik is KCR Otomotiv and Yagiz Naklivat acquired KCR
Otomotiv on 25.06.2021 through business combination. Voting rights and effective ownership interest of the Group have been
disclosed in Note 2.03.

2- Kocaer Steel UK LTD (Former title: Mymetal LTD} was established on 14.01.2013. The registered address of My Metal is 204 Field
End Road Easteote Pinner Middlesex Ha5 1Rd Londen England. MY Metal's business activities include wholesale of iron and steel
products. My Metal has been consolidated in accordance with the full consolidation method. Kocaer Celik acquired My Metal in
2015, The abovementioned consolidation has been considered as “business combination under common control ™ in the accompanying
consolidated financial statements. Voting rights and effective ownership interest of the Group have been disclosed in Note 2.03. The
title of Mymetal Limited was changed and and registered as Kocaer Steel UK Limited on 29 September 2022.

3- Kocaer Metal San. A S, was established on 14022012, The business title of Kocaer Celik Endistrisi Sanve Tic A.S has been
changed to Kocaer Metal San. A'S. on 11 May 2021 and published in Official Gazette numbered 250. The registered address of
Kocaer Metal is Yeni Foga Yolu 2.Km Sanayi Caddesi Bozkoy Kovi Mevkii Aliaga/lzmir. Kocaer Metal has been accounted for
using the equity method in the accompanving consolidated financial statements. Kocaer Metal's business activities include
purchasing, selling, marketing, importing and exporting iron and steel raw materials and semi-finished products. As of 20 May 2022,
Kocaer Metal Sanayi ve Ticaret A.S. has been in liquidation process. The relevant matter was published in Official Gazette on 26 May
2022 and numbered 10585, Kocaer Metal has not been included in the scope of consolidation since the Company is in liquidation
process and immaterial to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2022

4- The former subsidiaries of the Group which do not have business activities of iron, steel, transportation and motor vehicle operations,
Chakra Magazacihk Ticaret ve A.§. and Kocaer Tekstil Sanavi ve Ticaret A.S. have not been included in scope of consolidation and
not included in the accompanying consolidated financial statements accordingly. The aforementioned subsidiaries were sold o KCR
Teksktil San. ve Tic. A §. in accordance with the decision of the Board of Directors on 31 December 2021 numbered 35-36.

For the purpose of the consolidated financial statements and notes. Kocaer Celik and its consolidated subsidiaries and associates are hereinafter
referred to as “the Group™.

Total end of period and average number of personnel employed by Kocaer Celik 1s 887 (31 December 2021 716).
NOTE 2 - BASIS OF PRESENTATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.01 Basis of Presentation

The consolidated financial statements of the Group have been prepared in accordance with Turkish Financial Reporting Standards (“TFRS™)
promulgated by the Public Oversight Accounting and Auditing Standards Authority (“POA™) that are set out in the 5th article of the communiqué
numbered [I-14.1 “Communique on the Principles of Financial Reporting In Capital Markets™ (“the Communiqué™) announced bv the Capital
Markets Board ("CMB™) on 13 June 2013 and published in Official Gazette numbered 28676, TFRS are updated in harmony with the changes
and updates in [nternational and Accounting Standards (*IFRS”} by the communiqués announced by the POA.

The Group and its subsidiaries and associates maintain their books of accounts and prepare their statutory financial statements in accordance with
the Turkish Commercial Code ("TCC™), tax legislation. the Uniform Chart of Accounts issued by the Ministry of Finance. The consolidated
financial statements are based on the statutory records, which are maintained under historical cost conventions except for property, plant and
equipment including land, buildings, land improvements and plant, machinery and equipment measured at fair value, with the required
adjustments and reclassifications reflected for the purpose of fair presentation in accordance with TFRS and presented in Turkish Lira.

Foreign subsidiarics maintain their books of account in accordance with the laws and regulations in force in the countries in which they are
registered. Adjustments and restatements, required for the fair presentation of the consolidated financial statements in conformity with the TFRS,
have been accounted for in the statutory financial statements, which are prepared in accordance with the historical cost principle

After the restructuring undertaken in 2021, the main and sole activitics of the Group became iron, steel, lranxpunation and motor vehicle
operations and cease its operations in home textile.

r vehicle

In order to present the consolidated financial position and the results of operations solely of the iron, ste ITdTI.“pOﬁlﬂkl{h“Dﬂ mo
repare its cnnqolldalcdd\lndncml

comparatively for the period 1 January 2022 — 31 December 2021 and therefore, the Group has determingg

statements for the year ended 31 December 2021. .’ % S, \ .y
g = i [N % i
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As of 31 December 2021, the former subsidiaries of the Group which do not have business activities of irom, st f\ }ulum; andgrmotor

vehicle operations Chakra Magazacilik Ticaret ve A S, and Kocaer Tekstil Sanavi ve Ticaret A.S ‘have™not
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CONVENIENCE TRANSLATION INTO ENGLISH OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS ORIGINALLY
ISSUED IN TURKISH

KOCAER CELIK SANAYT VE TICARET ANONIM SiRKETI

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AS AT AND FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022
(Amaounis are expressed in Turkish Lira unless otherwise indicated.)

consolidation and not included in the accompanying consolidated financial statements accordingly. The aforementioned subsidiaries were sold to
KCR Teksktil San. ve Tic.A.S. in accordance with the decision of the Board of Directors on 31 December 2021 numbered 35-36.

Accordingly. Chakra Magazacilik Ticaret ve A'$. and Kocaer Tekstil Sanayi ve Ticaret A.S. which are the former subsidiaries of the Group have
been excluded from the accompanying consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2021, Therefore, the consolidated
financial statements include Kocaer Celik, its subsidiaries and associates” financial statements for the period ended 31 December 2022,

Reporting currency
1) Functional and presentation currency

ltems included in the consolidated financial statements of the Group are measured using the currency of the primary economic environment in
which the entity operates (“the functional currency™). The consolidated financial statements are presented in TL, which is Kocaer Celik’s
functional and presentation currency.

ii) Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional currency using the exchange rates prevailing at the dates of the transactions or
valuation where items are remeasured. Forcign exchange gains and losses resulting from the settlement of such transactions and from the
translation at period-end exchange rates of monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are recognised in the consolidated
statement of other comprchensive income.

iii)Translation of financial statements of subsidiaries and associates operating in foreign countries

Assets and liabilities of subsidiaries operating in foreign countries are translated into TL at the ¢xchange rates prevailing at the balance sheet
dates. Comprehensive income items of those subsidianies are translated into TL using average exchange rates for the period (if the average
exchange rates for the period do not reasonably reflect the exchange rate fluctuations, transactions are translated using the exchange rates
prevailing at the date of the transaction). Exchange differences arising from using average and balance sheet date rates are included in Teurrency
translation differences” under the equity.

The year-end and average rates for periods ended 31 December 2022 and 2021 can be summarized as below:

31.12.2022 31.12.2021

GBP - as of balance sheet date 22.4892 17.9667
GBP — yearly average 20,3180 12,1183

31.12.2022 31.12.2021
USD — as of balance sheet date 18.6983 13.329
USD — yearly average 16,5453 8.8407

31.12.2022 31,12,2021
EUR — as of balance sheet date 19.9349 15.0867
EUR — yearly average 17.3604 10.4238

2.02 Adjustments of Financial Statements in Hyperinflationary Periods

Before the related legislation of Turkish Commercial Code no. 6102 and the Decree Law no. 660, with the decision taken on 17 March 2005, the
CMB announced that, effective from 1 January 2005, the application of inflation accounting is no longer required for companies operating in
Turkey and preparing their financial statements in accordance with the financial reporting standards accepted by the CMB (“CMB Financial
Reporting Standards™). Accordingly. Turkish Accounting Standards 29. “Financial Reporting in Hyperinflationary Economies™, issued by the
POA, has not been applied in the financial statements for the accounting year commencing 1 January 2005,

2.03 Basis of Consolidation and Group Accounting

After the restructuring undertaken in the prior period, the main and sole activities of the Group became iron, steel. transportation and mator
vehicle operations and cease its operations in home textile. In order to present the consolidated financial position and the results of operations
solely of the iron, steel, transportation and motor vehicle comparatively for the prior period.

Accordmgly. Chakra Magazacilik Ticaret ve A$. and Kocaer Tekstil Sanayi ve Ticaret A.S. which are the former subsidiaries of the Group have
been excluded from the accompanying consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2021, Therelore, the consolidated
financial statements include Kocaer Celik, its subsidiaries and associates™ financial statements for the period ended 31 December 2022,

The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of the Group, and its subsidiarics from the date on which the control is transferred to
the Group until the date that the control ceases. The consolidated financial statements of the companies included in the scope of consolidation
have been prepared as of the date of the consolidated financial statements and have been prepared in accordance with 1mk1>h Financial
Reporting Standards by applying umform accounting policics and presentation. L

Subsidiaries

that significantly attect ]hl entity’s returns. On the othu Innd lhu (nroup controls an entity when it is c.xposud
from its involvement with the entity and has the ability o affect those retumns through its power over the entity.
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AS AT AND FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022

In order to be consistent with accounting policies accepted by the Group, accounting policies of the subsidiaries are modified where necessary.

The balance sheet and statement of income of the subsidiaries are consolidated on a line-by-line basis and all material intercompany payable
/receivable balances and sales / purchase transactions are eliminated The carrving value of the nvestment held by Kocaer Celik and its
subsidiaries is eliminated against the related equity and other equity items and non-controlling interest are reflected to the consolidated financial

statements.,

The non-controlling share in the net assets and results of subsidiaries for the period are separately classified as “non-controlling interest™ in the
consolidated statements of comprehensive income and the consolidated statements of changes in equity.

Voting rights of the Associates and their effective interests are as follows:

Proportion of voting rights and effective ownership interests held by Kocaer (%)

Associates 31.12.2022 31.12,.2021
Yagiz Nakltyat San. Ve Tic. A.S 90.81 90.81
Kocaer Steel UK LTD 89.99 89.99

Another subsidary of the Kocaer Celik 1s KCR Otomotiv and Yagiz Naklivat acquired KCR Otomotiv on 25.06.202 1 through business combination.

Kocaer Celik has the joint control of its subsidiaries and associates within the scope of full consolidation method by using the shares it owns directly
or indirectly, or by using the voting rights of Kocaer Family members and related parties on their behalf,

Subsidiaries are consolidated from the date on which the control is transferred to the Group and are no longer consolidated from the date that the
control ceases,

Nen-controlling shares in the net assets and operating results of Subsidiaries are separately classified in the consolidated financial statements as “non-
controlling interests”™

Business combinations under common control

Legal mergers among the entities controlled by the Group are not evaluated within the scope of the “TFRS 3 (Revised) Business Combinations™
standard. Acccordingly, in the absence of a specifically applicable IFRS Standard, the receiving company is required to develop its own
accounting policy for business combinations under common control, applying the requircments on selecting accounting policies in TAS 8
Accounting Policies. Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors in accordance with the paragraphs 10 and 12 presented under "USGAAP™
which describes guidance regarding business combinations under common control.

The financial statements of the acquired entities have been consolidated from the beginning of the financial year in which the business
combination occurs. Prior period consolidated financial statements have been restated in the same manner for comparability purposes. As a result
of these transactions, no goodwill or negative goodwill has been caleulated. Any difference between the consideration paid and the share capital
of the acquired entity are accounted under equity as “Business Combinations Under Common Control ™ included in retained eamings.

Joint Ventures are companies in respect of which there are contractual arrangements through which an economic activity is undertaken subject
to joint control by Kocaer Celik and one or more other parties. The Group's interest in joint ventures is accounted for by way of proportionate
consolidation. By this method, the Group includes its shares of the assets, liabilities, income and expenses of each joint venture in the relevant
components of the financial statements. The Group has no joint ventures at the end of the period.

Associates are entities over which the investor has significant influence. The power to participate in the financial and operating policy decisions
of the investee but is not control or joint control of those policies. Associates are accounted for using the equity method. Associates are
companies in which the Group has voting power between 20% and 50% or the Group has power to participate in the financial and operating
policy decisions but not control them. Unrealised gains or losses arising from transactions between the Group and its associates are eliminated to
the extent of the Group’s interest in the associates, In accordance with the equity method. profit for the period after tax is reflected to the
consolidated statement of profit or loss acccordingly ownership interest in a subsidiary.

The Group ceases to account the associate using the equity method if it loses the significant influence or the net investment in the associate
becomes nil, unless it has entered to a liability or a commitment. After the Group’s interest in the associates becomes nil. additional losses are
provided for, and a liability recognized, only to the extent that the Group has incurred legal or constructive obligations or made payments on
behalf of the associate. If the associate subsequently reports profits, the Group resumes including its share of those profits only after its share of
the profits equals the share of net losses not recognized in the accompanying consolidated financial statements.

Voting rights of the Subsidiaries and their effective interests are as follows:

Proportion of voting rights and effective ownership interests held by Kocaer (%)

Subsidiaries 31.12,2022 31.12.2021

Kocaer Metal San. ve Tic A S (¥) -

o~

e % Bls ie
* As of 20 May 2022, Kocaer Metal Sanavi ve Ticaret A-$. has been in liquidation process. The relevant matter WS published i8°Official
on 26 May 2022 and numbered 10385, Kocaer Metal was not included in the scope consolidation as of 31 'ccilcnbcr 2\02&;1.5‘ it emterel
: 72

liguidation process and did not have a material impact on the consolidated financial statements. 1 fx‘;;fr;“‘\‘ N e
KN R

) ) YRR 8 % B
The carrying amounts of the investments accounted for using the equity method are reviewed whether thcrcts any-xmdimﬁlibw i‘}m])alnr.m hat
cach reporting date. If such an indicator exists, the recoverable amount of the asset is estimated. \ '53“? SN O~
g
N Al
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The recoverable amount of the investments accounted for using the equity method refers to the higher of value-in-use or fair value less cost to
sell. Value-in-use is the present value of future cash flows expected to be generated from an asset or cash generating unit,

If the carrying amount of the investments accounted for using the equity method exceeds the recoverable amount, the impairment is accounted
for. Impairments are recognized in profit and loss accounts. Impairments are recorded in the statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
meome.

In investments accounted for using the equity method, impairments allocated in previous periods are re-evaluated in cach reporting period in the
event that impairment decreases or there are indicators that impairment is not valid, Tmpairment is reversed in case of changes in the estimates
used when determining recoverable amount. The increase in the carrying amount of the investments due to the reversal of the impairment loss is
accounted in such a way that it does not exceed the carrying amount determined if the impairment loss has not been included in the consolidated
financial statements in the previous years.

2.04 Comparatives and Adjustment of Prior Periods’ Financial Statements

The current period financial statements of the Group include comparative financial information to enable the determination of the trends in
financial position and performance.

Comparative figures are reclassified, where necessary, to conform to the changes in the presentation of the current period financial statements.

The current period financial statements of the Group include comparative financial information o enable the determination of the trends in
financial position and performance. The Group prepared its consolidated balance sheet at 31 December 2022 on a comparative basis with
consolidated balance sheet at 31 December 2021; and consolidated statements of income, comprehensive income, cash flows and changes in
equity for the period of 1 January - 21 December 2022 on a comparative basis with consolidated financial statements for the period of | January -
31 December 2021,

2.05 Changes in Accounting Policies

Whether there are changes and errors in accounting policies and accounting estimates, the amended significant changes and the identified
significant accounting errors are implemented retrospectively and the previous periods Group’s consolidated financial statements are restated.
Whether the changes are amended in accounting policies effect the previous periods, aforementioned policy is implemented retrospectively to the
consolidated financial statements as it had been used in.

There has been no change incurred in the accounting policies of the Group at the end of the period.
2.06 Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors

Accounting estimates are based on reliable information and reasonable estimation methods. However, estimates are revised as a result of changes
in circumstances, estimating new information or additional developments. If changes in accounting forecasts are related to only one period,
amendments are made in the current period. If amendments arc related to the forthcoming periods, changes are applied in both current period and
forthcoming periods. The nature and amount of a change in the accounting estimate, which has an impact on the outcome of the current period or
is expected to have an impact on subsequent periods, is disclosed in the notes o the consolidated financial statements. except when the estimation
of the effect on the future periods is not possible. There are no changes in the accounting estimates and errors expected to have an impact on the
results of operations in the current period.

2,07 Offsetting

Financial assets and liabilities are offset, and the net amount is reported in the balance sheet when there is a legally enforceable right to offset the
recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis or realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

2.08 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
Accounting policies used in the preparation of consolidated financial statements are summarised below:
2.08.01 Revenue Recognition

Revenue arising from product sales, the Group mainly generates revenue by producing and selling iron and steel products. Revenue is recognized
when the goods or services are transferred to the customer and the performance obligation is satisfied.

The Group is producing profile and bar steel produces with the hot rolling method, and can also provide processed product services through its
service center.

Kocaer Celik has been serving in many sectors such as; energy. transportation, mining and tunnel, ship building, agr‘u.wq-rtﬁg?[ﬁdﬁcqgatruclmna]
sectors by supplying customer-oriented steel products (equal angles, U and C profiles, 1 and H beams, round qu)}'ae’rpn. cd fard, 1ﬁ"iﬁ;p_g and
tunnelling profiles and fittings, square bars, flat bars) with different sizes, grades and lengths, as well as cnrp("hg out-operatiots ‘for p'ﬁ‘{iuct
development, sales & dispatch, import/export and custom clearances. ' | \

P 7
The Group recognizes revenue when the goods or services is transferred to the customer and when perféfmane obl@filiqn*ﬁm }
accordance with TERS 15, a five-stage approach is followed in recognizing revenue for all contracts with custo ] cr:f;. ;‘:j—;"s{.f
X k%
. Identification of customer contracts, \.‘ ‘!“' il Y
. [dentification of performance obligations, "“\ eru®
R
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. Determination of the transaction price in the contracts,
. Allocation of transaction price to the performance obligations,
J Recognition of revenue when the performance obligations are satisfied.

A contract with a customer recognized as a revenue will be within the scope of TFRS 15 if all the following conditions are met:

- the contract has been approved by the parties to the contract;

= cach party’s rights in relation to the goods or services to be transferred can be identified:

- the payment terms for the goods or services to be transferred can be identified:

- the contract has commercial substance; and

- it is probable that the consideration to which the entity is entitled to in exchange for the goods or services will be collected.

When assessing the collectability of a consideration, the Group considers only the customer's ability and intention to pay such consideration on
time. The price that the Group will be entitled to collect may be lower than the price specified in the contract since it offers a price advantage to
its customer on a customer and contract basis.

2.08.02 Inventories

Inventories are evaluated at either the lower of acquisition cost or net realizable value. Net realizable value is the estimated selling price in the
ordinary course of business less the estimated costs of completion and the estimated costs necessary to make the sale. Those costs also include
systematically distributed costs from fixed and variable general production expenses incurred in covering direct raw material to the goods. The
cost of inventories is determined by the weighted average method. Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of
business, less the costs of completion and selling expenses. When the net realizable value of the inventory below its cost, the inventories are
reduced to their net realizable value and the expense is reflected in the statement of profit or loss in the year in which the impairment incurred. In
cases where the conditions that previously caused the inventories to be reduced to net realizable value lose their validity or there is an increase in
the net realizable value due to changing economic conditions, the provision for the impairment allocated is reversed. The reverseal is limited with
the allocated impairment. The provision for impairment on inventories is disclosed in Note 13.

2.08.03 Property, Plant and Equipment and related depreciation

Land, buildings, land improvements and machinery and equipment have been revaluated by the appraisal firm Elit Gayrimenkul Degerleme A S
authorized by CMB. In accordance with the appraisal report prepared by the firm on 26-28 December 2022 and subsequently, property, plant and
equipment carried at their fair value less accumulated depreciation in the accompanying consolidated financial statements.

Property, plant and equipment except land, land improvements, buildings and machinery and equipment are carried at cost less accumulated
depreciation as of December 31, 2004 for the items purchased before 01 January 2005 and for the items purchased as of January [, 2005, less the
accumulated depreciation in the accompanying consolidated financial statements.

Gains arising from revaluation of land, buildings, land improvements and machinery and equipment have been classified under assets and
changes in the fair value (revaluation surplus) has been recognized under equity. Revaluation surplus arising from revaluation of property, plant
and equipment has been initially recognised under profit or loss less impairment, if there is a depreciation related to the property, plant and
equipment that was previously presented under profit or loss. The decrease in the book value arising from the revaluation of the aforementioned
land, buildings and land improvements has been presented under profit or loss, if the property, plant and equipment in question exceeds the
balance in the revaluation fund related to the previous revaluation.

Property, plant and equipment except land and construction in progress are carried at cost less accumulated depreciation. Depreciation 1s provided
for property, plant and equipment on a straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives. Usetul life, residual value and the depreciation method
are constantly reviewed, and accordingly, parallels are sought between the depreciation method and the period and the useful life to be derived
from the related asset.

Property, plant and equipment are reviewed for impairment losses whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount
may not be recoverable. An impairment loss is recognised for the amount by which the carrying amount of the asset exceeds its recoverable
amount, which 1s the higher of the asset’s net selling price or value in use. Recoverable amount of the property. plant and equipment is the higher
of future net cash flows from the utilisation of this property, plant and equipment or its fair value less cost to sell.

The gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement of an item of property and equipment is determined as the difference between the sales
proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and is recognized in profit or loss. In the disposal of the revalued property, plant and equipment,
the revaluation fund related to the disposed property, plant and equipment is transferred to retained eamnings.

Repairs and maintenance expenses are charged to the income statements during the period in which they are incurred. The cost of major
renovations is included m the carrying amount of the asset when it is probable that future economic benefits in excess of the originally assessed
standard of performance of the existing asset will flow to the Group. Major renovations are depreciated over the remaining useful life of the
related asset. Machinery and equipment are capitalised and amortised when their capacity is fully available for use.

Land is not depreciated as it is deemed to have an indefinite useful life.

12



CONVENIENCE TRANSLATION INTO ENGLISH OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS ORIGINALLY
ISSUED IN TURKISH

KOCAER CELIK S/

NAYID VE TICARET ANONIM SIRKETI

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AS AT AND FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022
(Amounis are expressed in Turkish Lira unless otherwise indicated.)

The depreciation periods for property, plant and equipment, which approximate the economic useful lives of such assets, are as follows:

Economic useful lives

- Land Indefinite
- Buildings 3-10
- Plant, Machinery and Equipment 4-50
- Motor Vehicles 10-25
- Furniture and Fixtures 2-50
- Leasehold Improvements 10-20

Gamns or losses on disposals of property, plant and equipment are determined by comparing proceeds with their net carrying amounts and are
classified under “gains/losses from investing activities” in the current period

Repairs and maintenance expenses are charged to the income statements during the period in which they are incurred. Machinery and equipment
are capitalised and amortised when their capacity is fully available for use.

2.08.04 Intangible Assets and related amortisation

Intangible assets are carried at cost value less accumulated amortization and impairment losses. These intangible assets are amortized on a
straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives.

Useful life and the depreciation method are constantly reviewed, and accordingly, parallels are sought between the depreciation method and the
period and the useful life to be derived from the related asset.

Rights and software recognized at their acquisition cost and these intangible assets are amortized on a straight-line basis over their estimated
useful lives subsequently for the period between 3-10 years.

Research and development costs (R&D);

The Group started its operations regarding value-added production by establishing R&D center in its business segment in 2015 with the approval
of Republic of Turkey Ministry of Industry and Technology.

Development costs recognized under consolidated statement of other comprehensive income in the period which they incurred.

Internally generated intangible assets resulting from development activities (or the development phase of an internal project) are recognized only
when all of the following conditions are met:

. Charge all research cost to expense

. Development costs are capitalised only after technical and commercial feasibility of the asset for sale or use have been established. This
means that the entity must intend and be able to complete the intangible asset and either use it or sell it and be able o0 demonstrate how the asset
will generate future economic benefits.

If'an entity cannot distinguish the research phase of an intemal project to create an intangible asset from the development phase, the entity treats the
expenditure for that project as if it were incurred in the rescarch phase only.

[f an intangible item does not meet both the defimtion of and the criteria for recognition as an intangible asset, TAS 3§ requires the expenditure on
this item to be recognised as an expense when it is incuired. Development costs recognized as an expense in the prior period cannot be able to
capitalized in subsequent period. Capitalized development cost is depreciated using the straight-line basis over an average of 5 years over the life of
the project. with the start of commercial production of the product. Tts useful life should be reviewed each reporting period to determine whether
events and circumstances continue to support an indefinite useful life assessment for that asset. If they do not, the change in the useful life
assessment from indefinite to finite should be accounted for as a change in an accounting estimate. The research and development activities of the
Group have been suspended and the existing research and development projects are still in progress.

Gains and losses arising from the disposal of intangible assets (the difference between net cash and the carrying value), recognized under
consolidated statement of profit or loss in the period of disposal of intangible assets.

Intangible assets comprise of rights, computer software and capitalized development costs.

2.08.05 Impairment of Assets

Assets with an indefinite useful life, such as goodwill, are not subject to amortization. An impairment test is applicd to these -.cach year. For
assets subject o amortization, impairment test is applied if the book value cannot be recovered. An impairment loss isae¢ognized if fhe carrying

amount of the asset exceeds the recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the higher of an assel's fair value lesg*Costs 1o self of value in-use.

For the purposes of assessing impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest levels for which there are separatel ;ﬁﬁntmabi—c cash flows. Nop
financial assets except goadwill that suffered impairment are reviewed for possible reversal of the impairment at ¢fich rporting dates, 1YL W
¥ Fre 1A

g o
2.08.06 Borrowing Costs '
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Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of qualifying assets, which 3
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substantially ready for their intended use or sale. The financing costs of borrowings attributable to ongoing mvestments are capitalised until the
completion of the investments. All other borrowing costs are recognized in the consolidated statement of profit or loss in the period in which they
are incurred,

2.08.07 Financial Instruments

TFRS 9 "Financial Instruments” standard

TFRS 9 includes requirements for recognition and measurement of financial assets and liabilities. This standard replaces TAS 39 Financial
[nstruments: Recognition and Measurement,

The details of significant accounting policies and nature of changes in previous accounting policies are as follows:
i.} Classification of financial assets and liabilities under TFRS 9 largely preserves the existing requirements of TAS 39 for the classification and
measurement of financial liabilities. However, the previous TAS 39 classification categories for financial assets, loans and receivables to be held

to maturity financial assets and financial assets available for sale have been removed.

The application of TFRS 9 did not have a significant impact on the Group's accounting policies for its financial liabilities and derivative financial
instruments. The classification and measurement of the financial assets under TFRS 9 are as follows.

The classification of financial assets within the scope of TFRS 9 is generally based on the business model used by the enterprise for the
management of financial asscts and the characteristics of the contractual cash flows of the financial asset. Within the scope of the standard, the
obligation to separate embedded derivatives from financial assets has been eliminated, and the classification of a hybrid contract as a whole
should be considered.

A financial asset is measured at amortised cost if it meets both of the following conditions and is not designated as at FVTPL:

e it is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets to collect contractual cash flows: and

* it is its contractual terms give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount
outstanding.

A debt instrument at FVOCT if both of the following conditions are met and the FV is not classified as measured by the difference in profit or
loss:

- The retention of the financial asset based on a business model aimed at collecting contractual cash flows and selling financial assets;
- The contractual terms of the financial asset lead to cash flows that include interest payments on principal and principal balance on certain dates.

The Group may irrevocably make preference about presentation of subsequent changes in its fair value in other comprehensive income on initial
recognition of non-trading equity investment. This is made separately for each investment.

All financial asscts not classified as measured at amortised cost or FVOCI as desceribed above are measured at FVTPL. This includes all
derivative financial assets. On initial recognition, the Group may irrevocably designate a financial asset that otherwise meets the requirements to
be measured at amortized cost or at FVOC! as at FVTPL if doing so eliminates or significantly reduces an accounting mismatch that would
otherwise arise.

In the first measurement of the financial assets other than the fair value changes that are reflected to the profit or loss (except for the trade
receivables that are measured at the transaction cost and not having an important financing component at the time of the financial statements), the

transaction costs directly attributable to the acquisition or issuance thereof are also added to the fair value.

The following accounting policies apply to the subsequent measurement of financial assets.

[hese assets are subsequently measured at fair value. Net gains and losses,
including any interest or dividend income, are recognized in stagemshtotprafit or
T T

Financial assets at FVTPL loss, 1.'."5' %
7
i
o
g
41 5

These assets are subsequently measured at amortized cost using the cfrective 2=
interest method. The amortized cost is reduced by impz\i;’fﬁgpt Iﬁes.ﬂ%ﬁt& i
income, foreign exchange gains and losses and impairment recognized in gy
Financial assets at amortised cost or loss. Any gain or loss on derecognition is recognized in profit oh
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These assets are subsequently measured at fair value. Interest income calculated
using the effective interest method, foreign exchange gains and losses and
impairment are recognized in profit or loss. Other net gains and losses are
recognized in OC. On derecognition, gains and losses accumulated in OC| are
Debt instruments at FVOCI reclassified to profit or loss.

These assets are subsequently measured at fair value. Dividends are recognized as
income in profit or loss unless the dividend clearly represents a recovery of part of
the cost of the investment. Other net gains and losses are recognized in OCI and are
Equity instruments at FVOCI never reclassified to profit or loss.

11) Impairment of financial assets;

TFRS 9 replaces the “incurred loss™ model in TAS 39 with an “expected credit loss™ ("ECL”} model. The new impairment model applies to
financial asscts measured at amortized cost, contract assets and debt investments at FVOCTI, but not to investments in equity instruments. Under
TFRS 9, credit losses are recognized earlier than under TAS 39,

T'he financial assets at amortized cost consist of trade receivables and cash and cash equivalents.
Under TERS 9, loss allowances are measured on either of the following bases: financial assets measured at amortized cost

- Lifetime ECLs: these are ECLs that result from all possible default events over the expected life of a financial instrument and bank balances for
which credit risk has not increased significantly since initial recognition;

- 12-month ECLs: these are ECLs that result from possible default events within the 12 months after the reporting date.

The Group has elected to measure loss allowances for trade receivables and contract assets at an amount equal to lifetime ECLs. When
determining whether the credit risk of a financial asset has increased significantly since initial recognition and when estimating ECLs, the Group
considers reasonable and supportable information that is relevant and available without undue cost or effort. This includes both quantitative and
qualitative information and analysis, based on the Group’s historical experience and informed credit assessment and including forward-looking
information.

The Group considers a financial asset to be in default when:

- the borrower is unlikely to pay its credit obligations to the Group in full, without recourse by the Group to actions such as realizing security (if
any is held).

- 360 days overdue
For determining whether a financial instrument has low credit risk, it may use other methodologies that comply with a globally accepted
definition of low credit risk and take into account the type and risks of the financial instruments being evaluated.

The maximum time to be measured by the ECLs is the maximum contractual period that the Group is exposed to credit risk. ECLs are a
probability-weighted estimate of credit losses. Credit losses are measured as the present value of all cash shortfalls (i.e. the difference between
the cash flows due to the entity in accordance with the contract and the cash flows that the Group expects to receive).

For trade receivables, other receivables, other assets and contract assets the Group applics the simplified approach to providing for expected
credit losses (TFRS 9 requires the use of the lifetime expected loss provision for all trade receivables). The expected credit losses were calculated
based on actual credit loss experience over the past years.

Credit-impaired f{inancial assets

At each reporting date, the Group assesses whether financial assets carried at amortized cost and debt securities at FVOG
financial asset is “credit-impaired” when one or more events that have a detrimental impact on the estimated futur
asset have occurred.

" Y
S - : I Y ¥ T 1=
Presentation of impairment ;; 5 iy ‘ﬁ o F
S 3 . . . h - \"n e } B ;
Loss allowances for financial assets measured at amortized cost are deducted from the gross carrying amount of %c asgets. ‘_C‘? 9P séeurities aé‘
FVOCIL, the loss allowance is recognized in OCI, instead of reducing the carrying amount of the asset. N o= kg o
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(Amounts are expressed in Turkish Lira unless otherwise indicated.)

Trade receivables

The following analysis provides further detail about the calculation of ECLs related to trade receivables and contract assets on the adoption of
TFRS 9. The Group considers the model and some of the assumptions used in calculating these ECLs as key sources of estimation uncertainty.
The Group performed the caleulation of ECL for receivables at the reporting date and loss allowance performances in accordance with the past
three year performances. lxposures within each group were segmented based on common credit risk characteristics such as credit risk grade,
delinquency status, geographic region, age of relationship.

Impairent of financial assets

The Group management makes assumptions and judgments such as default risk and expected credit losses for the relevant assets when evaluating
impairment on financial assets. While making these assumptions and judgments as of each balance sheet date, considering the past experiences
and performances of the Group, and the current market conditions and future expectations for the market.

2.08.08 Foreign Currency Translation

Foreign currency transactions are translated into Turkish Lira using the exchange rates prevailing at the dates of the transactions. Monetary assets
and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated into Turkish Lira using the exchange rates at the consolidated balance sheet date.
Forcign exchange gains and losses resulting from trading activities (trade receivables and payables) deneminated in foreign currencies of the
Group operating in the non-finance sectors, have been accounted for under “other operating income/expenses”

The consolidated financial statements are presented in TL, which is Kocaer Celik’s functional and presentation currency. Transactions in
currencics other than functional currency are recorded at the rates of exchange prevailing on the dates of the transactions. Foreign currency
indexed monetary assets and liabilities are recorded at the rates of exchange prevailing on the balance sheet date. Non-monetary items that are
measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are translated to functional currency as Turkish Lira using the exchange rates as at the
dates of the initial transactions, Non-monelary items measured at fair value in a foreign currency are translated using the LXLh&nUC rates at the
date when the fair value was determined. Currency translation differences recognized as profit or loss in the period which they incurred.

2.08.09 Earnings Per Share

Earnings per share disclosed in the income statement are determined by dividing net income attributable to equity holders of the parent by the
weighted average number of shares outstanding during the period concerned.

In Turkey, companies can increase their share capital through a pro-rata distribution of shares (“bonus shares™) to existing shareholders from
retained eamings and inflation adjustment to equity. For the purpose of earnings per share computations, the weighted average number of shares
in existence during the period has been adjusted in respect of bonus share issues without a corresponding change in resources, by giving them
retroactive effect for the period in which they were issued and cach earlier period as if the event had occurred at the beginning of the earliest
period reported.

2.08.10 Events After the Reporting Period

Events after the balance sheet date are those events, which occur between the balance sheet date and the date when the financial statements
are authorized for issuc. The Group adjusts the amounts recognised in consolidated financial statements to reflect the adjusting events after
the balance sheet date. If non-adjusting events after the balance sheet date have material influence on the economic decisions of users of the
financial statements, they are disclosed in the notes to the consolidated financial statements,

2.08.11 Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of past events, it is probable that an outflow of
resources will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate of the amount can be made. Contingent liabilities are consistently
reviewed prior to the probability of any cash out-flow. In case of the cash outflow is probable, provision is set forth in the financial statements of
the year the probability of contingent lLiability accounts is changed. A provision is recognized when the Group has a present obligation (legal or
constructive) as a result of a past event; it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying ¢conomic benefits will be required to settle the
obligation; and reliable estimate can be made for the obligation. The amount recognized as a provision is the best estimate of the consideration
required to settle the present obligation at the statement of financial position date, taking into account the risks and uncertainties surr ounding the
obligation.

Where the effect of the time value of money is material, the amount of provision shall be the present value of the expenditures expected to be
required o settle the obligation. The discount rate reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the
liability. The discount rate shall be a pre-tax rate and shall not reflect risks for which future cash flow estimates have been adjusted.

Possible assets or obligations that arise from past events and whose existence will be confirmed only by the occurrence or nofl}céltn\.n (
or more uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the Group are not included in the consolidated financial b.wltll‘lﬂnﬁ and‘tremﬂ as
contingent assets or liabilities.

2.08.12 Related Purties E i u
k1

For the purpose of these consolidated financial statements. sharcholders. parents of Kocaer Celik A.S. key manu“emen cr#ﬂnm_l augﬁe:frd of»
Directors members, their close family members and the legal entities over which these related parties exercise control ah n’il»u,dnl mﬂucnm
are considered and expressed as “related parties”
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2.08.13 Government Grants

The Group is entitled to have personel employment and turquality incentives and rights which are considered in the scope of government grants.
2.08.14 Taxes on Income

Income tax expense (or income) is the sum of the current tax expense and the deferred tax expense (or income).

Current Tax

Current year tax liability is calculated over the taxable profit for the period. Taxable profit differs from profit as reported in the income statement
because it excludes items of income or expense that are taxable or deductible in other years and it excludes items that cannot be taxed or
deducted. The Group’s liability for current tax is calculated using legal statuory tax rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the
balance sheet date.

Deterred Tux

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are determined by calculating the temporary differences between the amounts shown in the financial statements
and the amounts considered in the statutory tax base in accordance with the balance sheet method. Deferred tax liabilities are recognized for all
taxable temporary differences, whereas deferred tax assets resulting from deductible temporary differences are recognized to the extent that it is
probable that future taxable profit will be available against which the deductible temporary difference can be utilized. Deferred tax liability or
asset is not caleulated in respect of temporary timing differences arising from the initial recognition of assets or liabilities other than goodwill or
business combinations and which do not atfect both commercial and financial profit /loss.

Deterred tax liabilities are calculated for all axable temporary differences related to the investments in subsidiaries and associates and shares in
Jjoint ventures, except in cases where the Group is able to control the discontinuation of temporary differences and in the near future it is unlikely
that such difference will be eliminated. Deferred tax assets resulting from taxable temporary differences related to such investments and shares
are calculated on the condition that it is highly probable that future taxable profit will be available and that it is probable that future differences
will be eliminated.

The carrying amount of the deferred tax asset is reviewed at cach balance sheet date. The carrying amount of a deferred tax asset is reduced to the
extent that it is no longer probable that financial profit will be available to allow the benefit of some or that entire amount.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are calculated over the tax rates that are expected to be valid in the period when the assets are realized or the
liabilities are fulfilled and legalized or substantially legalized as of the balance sheet date (tax regulations}. During the calculation of deterred tax
assets and liabilities, the tax consequences of the methods that the Group expects to recover or settle the carrying amount of the assets as of the
balance sheet date are taken into consideration

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognized when there is a legal right to offset current tax assets and current tax liabilities, or if such assets
and liabilities are associated with the income tax collected by the same tax authority, or if the Group intends to pay off the current tax assets and
liabilities,

Current and deferred tax for the period

The deferred tax, other than those directly attributable to debt or liability recognized in equity (in which case deferred tax is recognized directly in
equity) or deferred tax, other than those arising from initial recognition of business combinations, is recognized as income or expense in the
income statement. In business combinations, the tax effect is taken into consideration in the calculation of goodwill or in determining the part of
the purchaser that exceeds the acquisition cost of the share of the acquiree's identifiable assets, liabilitics and contingent liabilities in the fair
value,

The taxes included in the consolidated financial statements include current period tax and the change in deferred taxes. The Group calculates
current and deferred tax on the results for the period.

Offsetting in tax assets and liabilities

The amount of corporate tax payable is netted because it is related to prepaid corporate tax amounts. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are also
offset in the same way.

2.08.15 Provision for Employment Termination Benefits

The provision for employment termination benefits, as required by Turkish Labour Law represents the present value of the future probable
obligation of the Group arising from the retirement of its employees based on the actuarial projections. TAS [9 “"Emplovee Benelits™ requires
actuarial assumptions (net discount rate, turnover rate to estimate the probability of retirement etc.) to estimate the entilyssmebligation for
employment termination benefits. The ¢ffects of differences between the actuarial assumptions and the actual outcome Lget "C}: with tHeeffects
of changes in actuarial assumptions compose the actuarial gains / losses and recognised under consolidated stzltc1negf’€)f_9thiff_ i
income.

g
2.08.16 Statement of Cash Flow f{ :~ it
4 P }

o L e
. : : 2 . ” ; sph i
Cash and cash equivalents are carried at cost in the consolidated balance sheet. Cash flows during the period i‘e cfﬁ,gsnlm(.l ﬁlgfd orted by 7
operating, investing and financing activities in the cash flow statements, Cash flows from operating activities reprefgnt the cash flows generateds
- - s o e = - . bt 3 T = B
from the Group’s activities such as cash in hand, bank deposits and liquid investments, < (B M F
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Cash flows from investing activities represent the cash flows that are used in or provided from the investing activities of the Group (tangible and
intangible assets and financial assets).

Cash flows from financing activities represent the cash proceeds from the financing activities of the Group and the repayments of these funds.
2.08.17 Investment Properties

[nvestment properties that are held in the production of supply of goods or services of for administrative purposes or for long tern rental viclds or
for capital appreciation or both rather than for the sale in the ordinary course of business are classified as “investment property” Investment
properties are measured initially at cost, including transaction costs. Subsequent to initial recognition, investment properties are stated at fair
value, which reflects market conditions at the balance sheet date. Daily repair and maintenance is not included in the aforementioned costs. Gains
or losses arising from changes in the fair values of investment properties are included in the statement of profit or loss in the vear in which they
arise. Investment properties are derecognized when either they have been disposed of or when the investiment property is permanently withdrawn
from use and no future economic benefit is expected from its disposal. Any gains or losses on the retirement or disposal of an investment property
are recognized in the statement of profit or loss in the year of retirement or disposal.

Investment properties has been revaluated by the appraisal firm Elit Gayrimenkul Degerleme A S. authorized by CMB. In accordance with the
appraisal report prepared by the finm, investment properties carried at their fair value on 26-28 Decembu 2022 in the accompanying consolidated
financial statements. The detailed information regarding investment properties is disclosed under Note 17.

2.08.18  Leases
Group - as a lessee
For lease contracts before 1 January 2019, whether the contract 1s, a or contains, a lease based on the substance of the relevant agreement;

(a) whether the performance of the contract depends on the use of a particular asset or assets; and
(b) making an assessment as 1o whether the contract transfers the right to use the relevant asset.

The Group has applied predecessor TFRS 16 “Leases” standard to contracts contain  leases by applying TAS 17 “Leases™ and TFRIC
Interpretation 4 ~“Determining whether an Arrangement Contains a Lease” TFRS 16 “Leases™ standard has not been applied to the contracts that
were previously detined as not contains a lease by applying TAS 17 ~“Leases” and TFRIC Interpretation 4 ~Determining whether an Arrangement
Contamns a Lease™ Therefore, prior year consolidated financial statements are not restated and the consolidated financial statements are presented
1n accordance with TAS 17 “Leases” and TFRIC Interpretation 4 ~Determining whether an Arrangement Contains a Lease™. The Group as a
lessee has classified the lease where the risks and benefits of ownership of the underlving asset previously subject to lease belong to the group as
finance lease. Other leases classified as operating leases. As of 1 January 2019, which is the transition date to TEFRS 16 “Leases” standard, the
Group has measured the lease liability over the present value of the unpaid lease payments at that date. The lease liability is initially measured at
the present value of the lease payments that are not paid at the commencement date, discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease or, if
that rate cannot be readily determined. the Group’s incremental borrowing rate. Generallv. the Group uses its incremental borrowing rate as the
discount rate.

The right-of-use asset is initially measured at cost, which comprises the initial amount of the lease liability adjusted for any lease payments made
at or before the commencement date. Lease payments included in the measurement of the lease liability comprise the following:

- The Group has applied a single discount rate to a portfolio of leases with reasonably certain in nature.

- As an alternative to reviewing the impairment, the Group has made its assessment of whether the leases are economically disadvantaged or not
by applying TAS 37 “Provisions. Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets”™ just before the initial transition.

- The Group has applied previous performance, trends and experiences for determining the lease term for lease contracts tha include terminate
and extension options.

The Group recognises a right-of-use asset and a lease lability at the commencement date of the lease following the consideration of the above
mentioned factors. At the commencement date, the Group measures the right-of-use asset at cost. The cost of the right-of-use asset comprises:

a) The amount of the initial measurement of the lease liability,

b} Any lease payments made at or before the commencement date, less any lease incentives received,
¢) Any initial direct costs incurred by the Group, and

d) An estimate of costs to be incurred by the Group in dismantling and removing the underlying asset, restoring the site on which it is located or
restoring the underlying asset to the condition required by the terms and conditions of the lease (unless those costs are incurred to produce
inventorics).

When applying the cost model, the Group measures the right-of-use asset at cost:

a) Less any accumulated depreciation and any accumulated impairment losses: and
b) Adjusted for any remeasurement of the lease liability,

The Group applies the depreciation requirements in TAS 16 Property, Plant and Equipment Standard in da.pm.mtmg,ithc r’lght-m ipﬁu.}ﬁﬁcl In.the &
event that the supplier transfers the ownership of the underlying asset to the Group at the end of the lease term or il [hﬁr},s,ost ofuse right mcllcale
that the Group will use a purchase option, the Group depreciates the right of use asset from the effective date of the Iemg to the andiotithe li\\(‘
life of the underlying asset. In other cases, the Group depreciates the right of use assets on the basis of the shorter of lhc“'{s:,qul life or ¢ S
term of the asset, starting from the effective date of the lease.

The Group applies TAS 36 Impairment of Assets Standard to determine whether the right-of-use asset is impaired and to account for any
mmpairment loss identified.
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At the commencement date, the Group measures the lease liability at the present value of the lease payments that are not paid at that date. The
lease payments are discounted by using the interest rate implicit in the lease, if that rate can be readily determined, or by using the Group’s
incremental borrowing rate.

The lease payments included in the measurement of the lease liability comprise the following payments for the right to use the underlying asset
during the lease term that are not paid at the commencement date:

a) Fixed payments, less any lease incentives receivable,
b) Variable lease payments that depend on an index or a rate, initially measured using the index or rate as at the commencement date,

¢) The exercise price of a purchase option if the Group is reasonably certain to exercise that option; and

d) Payments of penalties for terminating the lease, if the lease term reflects the lessee exercising an option to terminate the lease.

After the commencement date, the Group measures the lease liability by:

a) Increasing the carrying amount to reflect interest on the lease liability,

b) Reducing the carrying amount to reflect the lease payments made, and

¢) Remeasuring the carrying amount to reflect any reassessment or lease modifications. The Group recognises the amount of the remeasurement
of the Iease liability as an adjustment to the right-of-use asset.

The interest on the lease liabilities for each period in the lease term is the amount found by applying a fixed periodic interest rate to the remaining
balance of the lease liabilities. The periodic interest rate, if easily determined, is the implied interest rate on the lease. If this rate cannot be easily

determined, the Group uses the Group’s incremental borrowing interest rate.

After the effective date of the lease, the Group remeasures the lease liabilities to reflect changes in lease payments. The Group reflects the
remeasurement amount of the lease liabilities to the consolidated financial statements as an adjustment to the right of use assets.

The Group remeasures its lease liabilities by deducting the adjusted lease payments at a revised discount rate if either of the following conditions
oceurs:

(a) A change in the lease term. The Group determines adjusted lease payments based on the adjusted lease term.

(b) A change in these payments as a result of an index or rate change used to determine future lease payments. The Group remeasures the lease
liabilities to reflect the adjusted lease payments only when there is a change in cash flows,

The Group calculates the adjusted discount rate for the remainder of the lease term if the implicit interest rate in the lease can be easily
determined: if it cannot be easily determined, the Group determines the alternative borrowing interest rate at the date of the revaluation.

The Group remeasures its lease liabilities by reducing the adjusted lease payments if ¢ither of the following conditions incurred:

(a) Changes in the amounts expected (o be paid under a residual value commitment. The Group determines the adjusted lease payments to reflect
the change in the amounts expected to be paid under the residual value commitment.

(b) A change in these payments as a result of an index or rate change used to determine future lease payments. The Group remeasures the lease
liabilities to reflect the adjusted lease payments only when there is a change in cash flows.

The Group determines the adjusted lease payments for the remaining lease term based on the adjusted contractual payments. In this case, the
Group uses an unchanged discount rate.
The Group recognizes the restructuring of the lease as a separate lease if both of the following conditions are met:

(a) The restructuring shall extend the scope of the lease by adding the right of use on one or more underlying assets; and

(b) The increase in the lease amount by the appropriate price adjustment to reflect the price of the increase alone and the terms of the relevant
contract.

Right of use assets of the Group is disclosed under Note 14,
Group - as a Lessor
The Group classifies each of the leases as operating leases or finance leases, A lease is classified as a finance lease when all risks and gains of

ownership of the underlying asset are substantially transferred. A lease is classified as an operating lease if all risks and gt or Qi 2! of the
i . - - . A e . 4 " e Y

underlying asset are not substantially transferred. For a contract that includes one or more additional leasing ¢ oS B }fl(pgcm

T

- i S & . s s S
component, the Group distributes the contractual value by applving TFRS 135, "Revenue from Contracts with Custofiers &tamndar o
¥ ‘g.-:"’:‘?-a,x W % ‘\7?
2.09 Significant Accounting Judgements, Estimates and Assumptions I v w
- NI E
F; & ;

| Pt B
The preparation of the consolidated financial statements in accordance with TFRS requires management to makg estinatey d .'_’i;‘fml}l‘\[ptigns lhgt
are reflected in the measurement of income and expense in the statement of profit or loss and in the carrying va ofﬁl;;‘sctsa-ﬁafiiﬁ%itiliq%'in the
balance sheet. and in the disclosure of information in the notes to the financial statements. Managements do exergise jidgment and m lkn:?fol'
information available at the date of the preparation of the financial statements in making these estimates. The actuuﬁh :

&%: results #rom operfiions
in respect of the areas where these judgments and estimates have been made may in reality be different than those estim €5, m,pfl’
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The key assumptions concerning the future and other key resources of estimation at the balance sheet date, that have a significant risk of causing
a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year and the significant judgments (apart from
those involving estimations) with the most significant effect on amounts recognized in the consolidated financial statements are as follows:

a) Provision for employment termination benefits 1s determined by using actuarial assumptions (discount rates, future salary increases and
employee exit rates) (Note 24).

b) The Group has been applied revaluation model on property, plant and equipment and investment properties in the accompanying consolidated
financial statements. The fair value of property, plant and equipment and investment properties have been determined by appraisal firm
authorized by CMB (Note 17 and 18).

¢) The Group depreciates its property, plant and equipment and intangible assets on a straight-line basis over their useful lives. Expected useful
life residual value and amortization method are reviewed every year for possible effects of changes in estimates and are accounted for
prospectively if there is a change in estimates (Note 2.08.03-2.08.04).

d) On the provision for lawsuits, the probability of losing these cases regarding collecting the receivables and the consequences to be faced if
these cases are lost evaluated in accordance with the opinions of the Group’s legal counsel as of 31 December 2022 and 2021 (Note 22).

¢) In determining the impairment of trade receivables, creditworthiness of debtors, past payment performances and restructuring conditions,
collaterals of mortgages and receivable insurance amounts taken into consideration. In accordance with the transition to TFRS 9 standard,
“Expected Credit Loss™ (ECL) has been superseeded TAS 39 “Incurred Loss™ model (Note 10).

f) The Group has calculated the deferred tax in accordance with TAS and TFRS and reflected to the consolidated financial statements (Note 35).

g) The physical properties of the inventories and the past are examined in relation to the inventory impairment, the availability of the personnel is
determined according to the opinions of the technical personnel and provision is made for the items that are estimated to be unavailable. Average
sales prices are used to determine the net realizable value of inventories and provision for impairment is allocated in the accompanying
consolidated financial statements when net realizable value is below the cost. The information about the inventory impairment that has been set

as of the balance sheet date is given in Note 13.
2.10 Dividends

Common shares are classified as equity. Dividends on common shares are recognized in equity less retained eamings in the period in which they
are approved and declared.

2.11 Going Concern

As of 31 December 2022, the Group has prepared its consolidated financial statements with the assumption on the Group’s ability to continue its
operations in the foreseeable future as a going concern basis of accounting.

2.12 New and Revised Turkish Financial Reporting Standards

New and revised standards and interpretations

The accounting policies adopted in preparation of the consolidated financial statements as at 31 December 2022 are consistent with those of the
previous financial year, except for the adoption of new and amended Turkish Accounting Standards (“TASWVTFRS and (“TAS )TFRS

interpretations effective as of 1 January 2022, The effects of these standards and interpretations on the Group’s financial position and
performance have been disclosed in the related paragraphs.

The new standards, amendments and interpretations and interpretations to the existing previous standards which are effective from 31
December 2022 are as follows:

Interest Rate Benchmark Reform — Phase 2 — Amendments to TFRS 9, TAS 39, TFRS 7, TFRS 4 and TFRS 16

In December 2020, the POA issued I[nterest Rate Benchmark Reform — Phase 2, Amendments to TERS 9, TAS 39, TFRS 7, TFRS 4 and TFRS
L6 to provide temporary reliefs which address the financial reporting effects when an interbank offering rate (IBOR) is replaced with an
alternative nearly risk-free rate (RFR, amending the followings. The amendments are effective for periods beginning on or after 1 January
2021.Earlier application is permitted.

Amendments include the following matters;
Practical expedient for changes in the basis for determining the contractual cash flows as a result of IBOR reform
The amendments include a practical expedient to require contractual changes, or changes to cash flows that are directly required by the reform, to

be treated as changes to a floating interest rate, equivalent to a movement in a market rate of interest, Under this practical e*{pgdi,g% if the interest
rates applicable to financial instruments change as a result of the IBOR reform, the situation is not considered as a, dﬂ’et "mu.oh w niract

modification; instead, this would be determined by recalculating the carrving amount of the financial m%mnnenl{é{ing‘v ghc thmﬂl & “b{“
interest rate to discount the revised contractual cash flows. g e ‘*

The practical expedient is required for entities applying TFRS 4 Insurance Contracts that are using the exelé/ptl(ﬁ? frony 'J‘]’-'R\ 9 l'lh'mué{]
Instruments (and, therefore, apply TAS 29 Financial Instruments: Classification and Measurement) and i[)r HRS '16 Leflsﬁs- llk lL[l\.g
maodifications required by IBOR reform. !
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Relief from discontinuing hedging relationships

- The amendments permit changes required by IBOR reform to be made to hedge designations and hedge documentation without the hedging
refationship being discontinued.
- Amounts accumulated in the cash flow hedge reserve are deemed to be based on the RFR.

- For the TAS 39 assessment of retrospective hedge effectiveness, on transition to an RFR, entities may elect on a hedge-by-hedge basis, to reset
the cumulative fair value changes to zero.

- The amendments provide relief for items within a designated group of items (such as those forming part of a macro cash flow hedging strategy)
that are amended for modifications dircetly required by IBOR reform. The reliefs allow the hedging strategy to remain and not be discontinued.

- As instruments transition to RFRs, a hedging relationship may need to be modified more than once. The phase two reliefs apply each time a
hedging relationship is modified as a direct result of IBOR reform.

Separately identifiable risk components

The amendments provide temporary reliel to entities from having to meet the separately identifiable requirement when an RFR instrument is
designated as a hedge of a risk component.

Additional disclosures

Amendments need additional TFRS 7 Financial Instruments disclosures such as;

How the entity is managing the transition to RFRs, its progress and the risks to which it is exposed ansing from financial instruments due to
IBOR reform, quantitative information about financial instruments that have yet to transition to RFRs and If IBOR reform has given rise to
changes in the entity’s risk management strategy. a description of these changes in notes Lo the financial statements.

The amendments did not have a significant material impact on the financial position or performance of the Group.
Amendments to TFRS 4 Extension of the Temporary Exemption from Applying TFRS 9

The amendment changes the fixed expiry date for the temporary exemption in TFRS 4 Insurance Contracts from applying TFRS 9, so that entities
would be required to apply TFRS 9 for annual periods beginning on or after | January 2023 with the deferral of the effective date of TERS 17.

Standards and amendments issued but not yet effective and not early yet adopted as of 31 December 2022

Standards, interpretations and amendments to existing standards that are issued but not yet effective up to the date of issuance of the consolidated
financial statements are as follows. The Group will make the necessary changes if not indicated otherwise, which will be affecting the
consolidated financial statements and disclosures, when the new standards and interpretations become effective.

TFRS 17 - The New Standard for Insurance Contracts

The POA issued TFRS 17 in February 2019, a comprehensive new accounting standard for insurance contracts covering recognition and
measurement, presentation and disclosure. TFRS 17 model combines a current balance sheet measurement of insurance contract liabilities with
the recognition of profit over the period that services are provided. Certain changes in the estimates of future cash flows and the risk adjustment
are also recognised over the period that services are provided. Entitics will have an option to present the effect of changes in discount rates either
in profit and loss or in OCI. The standard includes specific guidance on measurement and presentation for insurance contracts with participation
features. TFRS 17 will become effective for annual reporting periods beginning on or after | January 2023; early application is permitted for the
entities applied TFRS 9 Financial Instuments and TFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers standards.

In accordance with amendments issued by POA in December 2021, entities have transition option for a “classification overlay™ to avoid possible
accounting mismaiches between financial assets and insurance contract liabilities in the comparative information presented on mitial application
of TFRS 17. The Group is assessing the potential significant material impact of the amendments on financial position or performance of the
Group.

The POA issued TFRS 17 in February 2019, a comprehensive new accounting standard for insurance contracts covering recognition and
measurement, presentation and disclosure. TFRS 17 model combines a current balance sheet measurement of insurance contract Jiabilities with
the recognition of profit over the period that services are provided. TFRS 17 will be applied for annual reporting periods beginning on or after
January 1, 2023. Early application is permitted. The Group is assessing the potential significant material impact of the amendments on financial
position or performance of the Group.

Amendments to TAS 1 - Classification of Liabilities as Current or Non-current e

e b e, Wt
On January 15, 2021, the POA issued amendments to TAS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements. The anlendlncnl&ﬁfé’su\:_d to FAS. 1 which '}grc
elfective for periods beginning on or after | January 2023, clarify the criteria for the classification of a liability as Gither cun'cnf or non-current.
Amendments must be applied retrospectively in accordance with TAS $ Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates ékhd Errors! Early :
application is permitted. The Group is assessing the potential significant material impact of the amendments on filancial position o performance '
of the Group. R Lo
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Amendments to TAS 8 - Definition of Accounting Estimates

In August 2021, the POA issued amendments to TAS 8, in which it introduces a new delinition of “accounting estimates”. The amendments
issued to TAS 8 are effective for annual periods beginning on or after | January 2023. The amendments clarify the distinction between changes in
accounting estimates and changes in accounting policies and the correction of errors. Also, the amended standard clarifies that the effects on an
accounting estimate of a change in an input or a change in a measurement technique are changes in accounting estimates if they do not result
from the correction of prior period errors. The previous definition of a change m accounting estimate specified that changes in accounting
estimates may result from new information or new developments. Therefore, such changes are not corrections of errors, This aspect of the
definition was retained by the POA. The amendments apply to changes in accounting policies and changes in accounting estimates that occur on
or after the commencement of the effective date. Earlier application is permitted. The Group 1s assessing the potential significant material impact
of the amendments on financial position or performance of the Group.

Amendments to TAS 12 — Deferred Tax related to Assets and Liabilities arising from a Single Transaction

In August 2021, the POA issued amendments to TAS 12, which narrow the scope of the initial recognition exception under TAS 12, so that it no
longer applies to transactions that give rise to equal taxable and deductible temporary differences. The amendments issued to TAS 12 are
effective for annual periods beginning on or after | January 2023. The amendments clarify that where payments that settle a liability are
deductible for tax purposes, it is a matter of judgment (having considered the applicable tax law) whether such deductions are attributable for tax
purposes to the liability recognised in the financial statements (and interest expense) or to the related asset component (and interest expense).
This judgment 1s important in determining whether any temporary differences exist on initial recognition of the asset and lability. The
amendments apply to transactions that occur on or after the beginning of the earliest comparative period presented. In addition, at the beginning
of the carliest comparative period presented, a deferred tax asset (provided that sufficient taxable profit is available) and a deferred tax Lability
for all deductible and taxable temporary differences associated with leases and decommissioning obligations should be recognized.

The Group is assessing the potential significant material impact of the amendments on financial position or performance of the Group.

Amendments to TFRS 16 - Sale and Leaseback Transactions

The amendments are effective for annual reporting periods beginning on or after 1 January 2024, The amendments to TFRS 16 add to
requirements explaining how an entity accounts for a sale and leaschack after the date of the transaction. Sale and leaseback transactions where
some or all the lease payments are variable lease payments that do not depend on an index or rate are most likely to be impacted.

NOTE 3 - BUSINESS COMBINATIONS
Business combination transactions with non-controlling interests

Business combinations are accounted for by using the acquisition method in the scope of TFRS 3 “Business combinations™ Anv excess of the
cost of acquisition over the acquirer’s interest in the (i) net fair value of the acquiree’s identifiable assets and contingent liabilities as of the
acquisition date, (11) amount of any non-controlling interest in the acquired entity and (iii) fair value of any equity interest previously held by
acquirer 1s accounted for as goodwill. [ those amounts are less than fair value of the net identifiable assets of the business acquired, the difference
is recognised directly in profit or loss. Goodwill recognised in business combinations is tested for impairment annually or more frequently if
events or changes in circumstances indicate impairment, instead of amortisation. Identifiable assets. liabilities and contingent liabilities of the
business acquired are measured initially at their fair values at the acquisition date and any difference exceeding the initial acquisition cost directly
recognised under profit or loss in the scope of TFRS 3,

For share purchases from non-controlling interests, the difference between any consideration paid and the relevant share acquired of the carrying
value of net assets of the subsidiary is deducted from equity. Gains or losses on disposals to non-controlling interests are also recorded in equity.
Consolidation is based on the concept of 'control' and changes in ownership interests while control is maintained are accounted for as transactions
between owners as owners in equity for the annual periods beginning on or after | July 2009 in accordance with the TAS 27 (Revised) standard.
The Group has no business combination transactions with non-controlling interests at the end of the period in accordance with the TFRS 3.

Business combinations under common control

Legal mergers among the entities controlled by the Group are not evaluated within the scope of the “TFRS 3 (Revised) Business Combinations™
standard. Acccordingly, in the absence of a specifically applicable IFRS Standard, the receiving company is required to develop its own
accounting policy for business combinations under common control, applying the requirements on selecting accounting policies in TAS &
Accounting Policies. Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors in accordance with the paragraphs 10 and [2 presented under “POA™ which
describes applications and policies regarding business combinations under common control.

The financial statements of the acquired entities have been consolidated from the beginning of the financial year in which the business
combination occurs. Prior period consolidated financial statements have been restated in the same manner for comparability purposes. As a result
of these transactions, no goodwill or negative goodwill has been caleulated. Any difference between the consideration paid an
of'the acquired entity are accounted under equity as “Business Combinations Under Common Control ™ included in retaing

share capital

Current period

None. F

Prior period

%a i &
In accordance with the Turkish Commercial Code numbered 136 and corporate tax law No.5520 article numbered %9 arfd220, KO R Quomogt
~ N - - ~ e o o . . ~ . L)
San ve Tie. A $and Yagiz Nakliyat San ve Tic. A.S. has business combination through merger of entitics under co¥unon co rdl on 25:ne

2021. The abovementioned business combination was published in Official Gazette on 30 June 2021 numbered 10360. “m,ﬁ*ﬁ
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For the accounting of business combinations under common control, the Group was acquired as an associate with elfective ownership interest
rate of 90.86% Yagiz Naklivat San. ve Tic. A.$. in 2018, KCR Otomotiv San. ve Tic. A.S. with effective ownership interest rate of 89.25% in
2016 and My Metal LTD in 2015 with effective ownership interest rate of 89.9%. As a result of the aforementioned transactions, no goodwill or
negative goodwill has been calculated. Any difference between the consideration paid and the share capital of the acquired entity are accounted
under equity as “Business Combinations Under Common Control™ meluded in retained camings. Entities subject to business combination
included in scope of consolidation and prior period consolidated financial statements have been restated in the same manner for comparability
purposes.

NOTE 4 - DISCLOSURE OF INTERESTS IN OTHER ENTITIES
None.
NOTE 5 - SEGMENT REPORTING

The reportable segments of Kocaer Celik have been organized by the Group management which are strategic businessess that present various
products and services. Those segments include steel, transportation, machinery industry and various other sectors.

Operating segments which have been prepared in accordance with the reportable segments of Kocaer Celik for the periods ended 31 December
2022 and 2021 are as follows:

31.12.2022
Elimination/
Steel Transportation  Adjustments Total
Revenue 10.336.160.232 57059981  (974.754.610)  9.418.465.603
Cost of Sales (-) (8.147.474.737) (56.032.060) 947.720.191 (7.255.786.6006)
Gross Profit from Non-Finance Sector Operations 2.188.685.495 1.027.921 (27.034.419)  2.162.678.997
GROSS PROFIT 2.188.685.495 1.027.921 (27.034.419)  2.162.678.997
Marketing, Sales and Distribution Expenses (-) (564.205.421) - - (564.208.421)
General Administrative Expenses (-) {82.738.,149) (761.734) 90.847 (83.409.036)
Research and Development Expenses (-) (2.911.49%) - - (2.911.498)
Other Operating Income 11975.532 420214 (435.850) 77.959.894
Other Operating Expenses (-) (185.967.884) (394.698) 345003 (186.017.579)
OPERATING PROFIT 1.430.835.075 291.703 (27.034.419) 1.404.092.357
Share of profitloss of investments accounted for using the equity method - - - -
Gains from investment activitics 217.103.219 44.164 - 217.147.385
Losses from investnent activities (-) (129913 - - (129.913)
OPERATING PROFIT BEFORE
FINANCIAL INCOME/(EXPENSE) 1.647.808.381 335.867 (27.034.419) 1.621.109.829
Financial Income 100.121.867 356 - 100.122.223
Financial Expense (-) (908.535.509) (10.356) - (908.545.865)
PROFIT BEFORE TAX 839.394.739 325.867 (27.034.419) 812.686.187
31.12.2021
Elimination/
Steel Transportation Adjustments Total
Revenue 4.493.741 648 28.764.592  (306.199.696)  4.216.306.544
Cost of Sales (-) (3.643.371.515) (27.601.944) 306.236.424  (3.364.737.035)
GROSS PROFIT 850.370.133 1.162.648 36.728 851.569.509
Marketing, Sales and Distribution Expenses (-) (280.664.456) - - (280.604.456)
General Administrative Expenses (-) (32.640.365) (325.700) (60.312) (33.026.377)
Rescarch and Development Expenses (-) (1.806.951) - - (1.806.951)
Other Operating Income 510.480.143 820458 811.333 512.111.934
Other Operating Expenses (-) (85.876.823) (389.581) - (86.266.404)
OPERATING PROFIT 959.861.681 1.267.825 787.749 961.917.255
Share of profit/loss of investments accounted for using the equity method 53 - - 53
Gains from investment activities 190.940.738 4.984.176 (166.236.547) 209.688.367
Losses from investment activities (-) {887.293) - - (887.293)
OPERATING PROFIT BEFORE
FINANCIAL INCOME/EXPENSE) 1.149.915.179 6.252.001 (165.448.798) 990.718.382
Financial Income 23.669.601 58.369 gl;éi.lﬂ:ﬁ""“":--7;,}‘604.990
Financial Expense (-) (834.035.754) (156.452) < AIRITY L (834069.235)

D " z:
ERUFIE BEFORETowx 339.549.026 6.153.918

180.254.146

]
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NOTE 6 - CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

As of 31 December 2022 and 2021, the functional breakdown of cash and cash equivalents is as follows:

Account Name 31.12.2022 31.12.2021
Cash in hand 71.508 45,543
Banks 4606.462.769 310.385.565
- Demand Deposits 274.278.887 228.0057.462
- Time Deposits 192183 882 82.328.103
Other 14.700 4.324
Cash and cash equivalents, net 466.548.977 310.435.432
As ol 31 December 2022 and 2021, the functional breakdown of cash in hand is as follows:
31.12.2022 31.12.2022 31.12.2021 31.12.2021
Original Currency Original Currency
Cash in hand: Amount TL Equivalent Amount  TL Equivalent
TL 11.457 11.457 - 26.520
usD 1.235 232,076 916 12.209
EUR 1.855 36.953 450,00 6.789
GBP 1 22 1.40 25
Total 71.508 45.543
As of 31 December 2022 and 2021, the functional breakdown of banks is as follows:
31.12.2022 31.12.2022 31.12.2021 31.12.2021
Original Currency Original Currency
Banks: Amount TL Equivalent Amount  TL Equivalent
TL 67.357.886 67.357.886 - 92.574.212
usD 18.155.355 330.474.265 11.204.694 150.680.271
EUR 2.345.736 46.762.028 4.449.686 67.131.082
GBP 572212 12.868.590 - -
Total 466.462.769 310.385.565
As of 31 December 2022 and 2021, the functional breakdown of time deposits is as follows:
31.12.2022 31.12.2022 31.12.2021 31.12.2021

Annual effective

Annual effective

Banks: Original Currency Amount __interest rate % Original Currency Amount _ interest rate %
TL 5574971 12.50-13.50 82.328.103 1521-17.39
usD 186.609.110 1.47 - -
Total 192.183.882 82.328.103 -
Maturity schedule: 31.12.2022 31.12.2021
1-30 days 191.610.344 82.316.799
30-90 days 573538 11.304
Total 192.183.882 82.328.103

As of 31 December 2022 and 2021, the Group has no blocked deposits.

As of 31 December 2022 and 2021, total cash and cash equivalents presented under consolidated statement of cash flow less blocked accounts

and current customer balances.

Statement of Cash Flow Reconciliation:

31.12.2022

31.12.2021

Cash and cash equivalents
Less: Blocked accounts (-)

Less: Interest income arising from time deposits (-)

466.548.977

310.435.432

(2.318.103)

Total

(32.046)
466.516.931

308.117.329

NOTE 7 - FINANCIAL INVESTMENTS

¥ %
As of 31 December 2022 and 2021, the breakdown and details of short term financial investments are as follows: f In Bt e K
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Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss comprise of equity securities and fund accounts. These relevant accounts are carried at their

fair value in the accompanying consolidated financial statements as of 31 December 2022.

As of 31 December 2022 and 2021, the breakdown and details of long term financial investments are as follows:

Account Name 31.12.2022 31.12.2021
Kocaer Steel Ireland Limited (¥) - - 1.959 o -
Total 1.959 -

(*)Kocaer Steel Ireland Limited was established on 23 November 2022 by Kocaer Steel UK LTD and included in the scope of consolidation. The
share capital of Kocaer Steel Ireland Limited is amounting to EUR 100. The reason of the establishment of Kocaer Steel Ireland Limited is
increasing exports in the European market. As of 31 December 2022, Kocaer Steel Ireland Limited is inactive and has not been carrying on any

business or operation.

NOTE 8 - BORROWINGS

As of 31 December 2022 and 2021, the detailed analysis of short term borrowings are as follows:

Account Name

31.12.2022

31.12.2021

Bank Borrowings
Finance Lease Liabilities

1.401.425.185
95.693.587

572.945.505
135.083.901

Lease Liabilitics 2.050.487 790.610
Other 393.452 113.976
Short term borrowings, net 1.499.562.711 708.933,992
As of 31 December 2022 and 2021, short term pottion of long term borrowings are as follows:

Account Name 31,12.2022 31.12.2021
Principal and Interest [nstallments of Long Term Borrowings 159.068.429 669.143.779
Short term portion of long term borrowings, net 159.068.429 669.143.779
As of 31 December 2022 and 2021, the detailed analysis of long term borrowings are as follows:

Account Name 31.12.2022 31.12.2021
Bank Borrowings 1832.441.296 272.803.084
Finance Lease Liabilities 67.769.245 86.929.893
Lease Liabilitics 101.047.785 21.382.852
Long term borrowings, net 351.258.326 381.115.829
Repayment schedule of borrowings 1s as follows:

Loans 31.12.2022 31.12.2021
0-3 months 281.047.133 508.028.984
4-12 months 1.279.839.933 734.174.276
13-36 months 182.441.296 233.555.160
26-60 months - 39.247.924
Total 1.743.328.362 1.515.006.344
Finance Lease Liabilities 31.12.2022 31.12.2021
0-3 months 24.785.702 35.181.327
4-12 months 70.907.885 99.902.574
13-36 months 64.755.991 86.929.893
36-60 months 3.013.254 -
Total 163.462.832 222.013.794
Lease Liabilities 31.12.2022 31.12.2021
0-3 months 654895 183.821
4-12 months 1.395.592 606.789
1 year and over 101.047.785 21.382.852
Total 103.098.272 221734620
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Annual effective interest rates of borrowings in terms of currencies are as follows:

31.12.2022

Annual Effective
Currency Original Currency Amount TL Equivalent Interest Rate (%)
TL: 935.465.510 935.465.510 6.25%-19.55%
EUR 0.199.484 183.996.116 2.70% - 5.50%
UsD 33.254.979 623.8606.736 3.90%-6.75%
Total 1.743.328.362
31.12.2021

Annual Effective

Currency Original Currency Amount TL Equivalent  Interest Rate (%)
TL 84.395.52% 84.305.528 8%-22%
EUR 23.301.482 352.176.268 3%-6%
USD 80.763.465 1.078.434.548 1%-8%
Total 1.515.006.344

Annual effective interest rates of finance leases in terms of currencies are as follows:

31.12.2022

Annual Effective
Currency Original Currency Amount TL Equivalent Interest Rate (%)
TE 226,162 226.162 15%
EUR 3.835.029 76.703.255 1%-5%
USD 4.612.631 86.533.415 1 %-%4
Total 163.462.832
31.12.2021

Annual Effective
Currency Original Currency Amount TL Equivalent  Interest Rate (%)
TL 360.212 360.212 15%
EUR 5918811 89.456.318 1%-6%
USD 9.900.192 132.197.264 6%-8%
Total 222.013.794
NOTE 9 - OTHER FINANCIAL LIABILITIES
None.
NOTE 10 - TRADE RECEIVABLES AND PAYABLES
As of 31 December 2022 and 2021, the breakdown of short term trade receivables is as follows:
Account Name 31.12.2022 31.12.2021
Trade Receivables from Third Parties 1.291.533.655 521.056.596

-Customers

-Notes Receivables

-Other

- Doubiful Trade Receivables

- Provision for Doubtfid Trade Receivables (-)

1.109.074.494
182.459.161

18.116.340
(18.116.340)

515.382.724
3.486.654
187.218
21.913.658
(21.913.658)

Trade Receivables from Related Parties (Note 37) 239.835 631.006
Short term trade receivables, net 1.291.773.490 521.687.602
The movements of provision for doubtful receivables are as follows:

01.01.2022 01.01.2021

31.12.2022 31.12.2021
Begimnning of the period — 1 January 21.913.658 13.278.792
Increases during the period (Note 31) 5.588.413 8.709.982
Provisions no longer required (Note 31) (9.385.730) (679.453)
Currency translation differences - 604.337
End of the period — 31 December 21,913,658

" s e ; : : T . LT A, S
The Group has been organized its sales mainly from according to custmers orders. A significant portion of doitstic and forejgn sales ar

under the scope of receivables insurance, and foreign sales are made within the scope of confirmed letter
mitigates the risk arising from its sales with avoiding losses on cash flow.

As of 31 December 2022 and 2021, the Group has no long term trade receivables,
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As ot 31 December 2022 and 2021, the breakdown of short term trade payables is as follows:

Account Name 31.12.2022 31.12.2021
Trade Payables to Third Parties 853.047.794 437.121.068
- Suppliers 853.047.794 437.033.563
- Other - 87.205
Trade Pavables to Related Parties (Note 37) 1.121.151 048.716
Short term trade pavables, net 854.168.945 437.769.784

As of 31 December 2022 and 2021, the Group has no long term trade payables.
NOTE 11 - OTHER RECEIVABLES AND PAYABLES

As of 31 December 2022 and 2021, the detailed analysis of short term other receivables is as follows:

Account Name 31.12.2022 31.12.2021
Other Recetvables from Third Parties 106.088.178 55.236.021
- Depesits and Guarantees Given 3.872.077 795.791
- Receivables from Tax Office 06.724.641 49.986.730
- Receivables from Personnel 335567 882030
- Other 5155893 3.571.450
Other Receivables from Related Parties (Note 37) %) 51.866.828 436.868.416
Short term other receivables, net 157.955.006 492.104.437

(*) Includes the portion amounting to TL 377.213 418 arising from disposal of the subsidiaries of the Group, Chakra Magazacihik Ticaret ve A.S
and Kocaer Tekstil Sanavi ve Ticaret A S . with the business activities of home textile and household linens, and were sold to KCR Teksktil A S.
in accordance with the decision of the Board of Directors on 31 December 2021 numbered 35-36 and disposal of Chakra, a subsidiary of the
Group. and its trademark righs which were sold to KCR Teksktil A'S. in accordance with the decision of the Board of Directors on 31 December
2021 numbered 37.

As of 31 December 2022 and 2021, the details of long term other receivables are as follows:

Account Name 31.12.2022 31.12.2021
Other Receivables from Third Parties 2.138.417 260.544
- Deposits and Guarantees Given 2.138417 260 544
Long term other receivables, net 2.138.417 260.544

As of 31 December 2022 and 2021, short term other payables are as follows:

Account Name 31.12.2022 31.12.2021
Other Payables to Third Parties 45.208.067 34.672.413
- VAT Payables 15.726.900 16.527.049
- Other Liabilities 77811 37.881
- Taxes Payable 29.312.677 18.054.102
- Other 90.679 33381
Other Pavables to Related Parties (Note 37) 2.268.637 12.759.815
Short term other payables, net 47.476.704 47.432.228

As of 31 December 2022 and 2021, the Group has no long term other payables.
NOTE 12 - DERIVATIVE INSTRUMENTS

The breakdown of short term derivative instruments as of 31 December 2022 and 2021 is as follows:

Account Name 31.12,2022 31.12.2021
Assets Arising From Derivative Instruments 78.810.433 139.664.247
Total 78.810.433 139.664.247

The breakdown of long term derivative instruments as of 31 December 2022 and 2021 is as follows:

Account Name 31.12.2022 .z “nd1.12.2021
Assets Arising From Derivative instruments 70.280:57 1. L 96:456.779
Total 70280520 0(,.456-.-1,79

37

The Group uses hedge accounts on its consolidated balance sheet by borrowing in the same currency against lhe foreign gun'émv denmmndmd
risks arising from the foreign currency sales amounts to be realized in the subsequent periods within the scope oftlm dﬂrccmcms

In this context, repayments of foreign currency denominated borrowings, which are subject 1o hedge accounting and dt.lem‘nmf.d as hfdol‘.h
instrument, are made with foreign currency sales cash flows that are realized on closing dates and determined as hcd"ed Ttemy withinjthe scopgof
hedge accounting. ol ¥
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ATEMENTS AS AT AND FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022

In accordance with the currency risk management strategy determined by the Group management, unrealized firm commitment applies hedge
accounting to hedge the currency risk component of the fair value risk and hedge the cash flow risk of the highly probable forecast transaction
currency nsk component and is formed on the hedged item and the hedging instrument. The Group aims to present a precise income statement by
netting the foreign exchange rate fluctuations that have not yet been realized and by following the currency fluctuations of bank borrowings,

which are defined as hedge mstruments, under the consolidated statement of other comprehensive income.

NOTE 13- INVENTORIES

As of 31 December 2022 and 2021, the functional breakdown of inventories is as follows:

Account Name

31.12.2022 31.12.2021
Raw Materials and Supplics 293,494,139 99.729.677
Goods 693.208.271 413.140.146
Merchandise 553.786.125 111.631.915
Other Inventories 4.330.122 1.485.3061
Less: Provision for [mpairment on Inventories (-) - (278.739)
Total 1.544.818.657 625.708.360
Movement of provision for impairment on inventories is as follows:
01.01.2022 01.01.2021
31.12.2022 31.12.2021
Beginning of the period — 1 January 278.739 =
Increases during the period (Note 31) - 278.739
Reversals (Note 31) (278.739) -
End of the period — 31 December - 278.739

NOTE 14 - RIGHT OF USE ASSETS

As of 31 December 2022 and 2021, the movements for right of use assets, and related depreciation are as follows:

31.12.2022
Opening Currency
balance — 1 Contractual Rent Increase Translation  Closing balance —
Cost January 2022 Additions Additions Differences 31 December 2022
Motor vehicles 3.317.556 - 1.397.936 - 4.715.492
Buildings 25.141.679 84.767.013 430.742 6.919.789 117.259.223
Total 28.459.238 84.767.013 1.828.678 6.919.789 121.974.715
Currency
Opening balance — Current Period Translation  Closing balance —
Accumulated depreciation (-) 1 January 2022 Depreciation Differences 31 December 2022
Motor vehicles (1.605.942) (1.036.517) - (2.642.458)
Buildings (5.399.488) (9.186.520) (1.383.958) (15.969.966)
Total (7.005.430) (10.223.037) (1.383.958) (18.612.425)
Net Book Value 21.453.805 103.362.290
31.12.2021
Opening Currency
balance — 1 Contractual Rent Increase Translation  Closing balance —
Cost January 2021 Additions Additions Differences 31 December 2021
Motor vehicles 3.303471 - 14.085 - 3.317.556
Buildings 1.365.371 23.980.597 (204.289) - 25.141.679
Total 4.668.842 23.980.597 (190.204) - 28.459.235
Currency
Opening balance — Current Period Translation  Closing balance —

Accumulated depreciation (-) 1 January 2021 Depreciation DiffereWées ™34 December 2021
Motor vehicles (1.035.404) (570.538) B L0 605,942
Buildings (417.465) (4.982.023) A b e kel 5:399.488)
Total (1.452.869) (5.552.561) g e T (7.005.430)
Net Book Value 3.215.973 E o plT a0 21453805
£ ] Y
L ; ¥
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NOTE 15 - PREPAID EXPENSES AND DEFERRED INCOME

As of 31 December 2022 and 2021, the breakdown short term prepaid expenses is as follows:

Account Name 31.12,2022 31.12.2021
Prepaid Expenses to Third Parties 92.658.501 35.843.922
Short Term Prepaid Expenses 23.426.227 9.386.135
Advances Given for Purchases 69 /39716 26.349.296
Advances Given to Personnel 83.740 73.993
Business Advances 5818 34.498
Short term prepaid expenses, net 92.658.501 35.843.922

As of 31 December 2022 and 2021, the Group has no long term prepaid expenses.

As of 31 December 2022 and 2021, the breakdown of short term deferred income is as follows:

Account Name 31.12.2022 31.12.2021

Deferred Income from Third Parties 933.044.943 217.428.541
Advances Received (*) 932687 582 217428541
Short term deferred income 357361 -

Short term deferred income, net 933.044.943 217.428.541

(*) Includes advances received from domestic and foreign customers

As of 31 December 2022 and 2021, the Group has no long term deferred income.

NOTE 16 - INVESTMENTS ACCOUNTED FOR USING THE EQUITY METHOD

As of 31 December 2022 and 2021, the functional breakdown of the details of carying values subject to equity accounting of subsidiary is as

follows:
Proportion of Effective

Account Name Interest % 31.12.2022 31.12.2021
Kocaer Metal San A S (%) 20% - 128.963
Total - - 128.963

31.12.2022 31.12.2021
Current assets - 666.505
Non-current assets - 25.914
Total assets - 092.419
Current liabilities - 47.604
Non-currrent liabilities - -
Equity - 644 815
Total liabilities and equity - 692 419
Net sales - B
Profit for the period - 267

The summary financial information of the subsidiary accounted for using the equity method
for the period and year ended 31 December 2022 and 2021 respectively, is as follows:

Account Name 31.12.2022 31.12.2021
Begmnning of the period - | January - 128.910
Share of profit for the period - 53
End of the Period — 31 December - 128.963

(*) As of 20 May 2022, Kocaer Metal Sanavi ve Ticaret A $. has been in hquidation process. The relevant matter was published in Official
Gazette on 26 May 2022 and numbered 10585, Accordingly. Kocaer Metal Sanayi ve Ticaret A.S. has not been considered as an investment
accounted for using the equity method and provision for impairment of investments in a subsidiary has been allocated in the accompanying
consolidated financial statements as of 31 December 2022,

NOTE 17 - INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

4, e -
As of 31 December 2022 and 2021, the functional breakdown and relevant financial information regarding i "esll}gem_, y '(»})E'r; ctare as-follows
?‘: a ; N =] o4 ]

Opening balance — & o 4 L‘\‘::;.._,‘-*(Zjnéing,baliléée -
Cost 1 January 2022  Additions Disposals _ Revaluzdition Syrphus “:3 Lﬁﬁecﬂﬁbcq‘&ﬂn
Land 27.000.000 - - 143.920:000 % 70.9£0.000
Buildings 32.395.000  3.558.303 5 39821687 e ™ g
Total 59.395.000 3.558.303 . 93,741,697 +456.695.000
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Opening balance —

Cost Closing balance —

1 January 2021 Additions Disposals Revaluation Surplus 31 December 2021
Land 18,085.000 - - 8.915.000 27.000.000
Buildings 19.355.000 - - 13.040.000 32.395.000
Total 37.440.000 - - 21.955.000 59.395.000

The fair value of the investment properties was determined as of 26-28 December 2022 and the changes in fair value were reflected to the
consolidated financial statements for the period ended 31 December 2022. In the determination of the fair values of the investment properties as
0f'26-28 December 2022 the fair values determined as a result of the appraisal studies carried out by Elit Gayrimenkul Degerleme A S. which is
authorized by the Capital Markets Board for the valuation of investment properties and those values have been reflected to the accompanying
consolidated financial statements. As of 31 December 2022 and 2021, the detailed information of investment properties is as follows:

2022 2022 Accumulated
31.12,.2022 Net Book Value  Appraisal Value  Revaluation Surplus Revaluation Surplus
Aliaga 393 No'lu Parsel 17.155.000 48.925.000 31.770.000 43.855.000
Ankara 15 Adet B.B. 9.465.000 27.435.000 17.790.381 25.402.863
Denizli Zevtinkay Dubleks Mesken 2.835.000 6.425.000 1.428.967 3.789.759
Kuspinar 2 Arsa + Villa 9.670.000 21.725.000 12.055.000 20.265.153
Denizli Cankurtaran Arsa 2.270.000 6.280.000 4.010.000 6.080.000
Istanbul Acarkent Villa 18.000.000 45.905.000 26.687.349 40.209.332
Total 59.395.000 156.695.000 93.741.697 139.602.107
31.12.2021 2021 2021 Accumulated

Net Book Value Appraisal Value Revaluation Surplus  Revaluation Surplus

Aliaga 393 No'lu Parsel 11.660.000 17.155.000 5.495.000,00 12.085.000
Ankara 15 Adet B.B. 6.450.000 9.465.000 3.015.000,00 7.612.482
Denizli Zeytinkéy Dubleks Mesken 2.000.000 2.835.000 835.000,00 2.360.792
Kugpinar 2 Arsa + Villa 6.435.000 9.670.000 3.235.000,00 5.210.153
Denizli Cankurtaran Arsa 1.355.000 2.270.000 915.000,00 2.070.000
Istanbul Acarkent Villa 9.540.000 18.000.000 5.460.000,00 13.521.983
Total 37.440.000 59.395.000 21.955.000 45.860.410

NOTE 18 - PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

As of 31 December 2022 and 2021, the movements for property, plant and equipment, and related depreciation are as follows:

31.12.2022
Currency
Opening balance - translation Closing balance —
Cost I January 2022 Additions Disposals Transfers  Revaluation Surplus  differences 31 December 2022
Land 480,360.000 - - 162.455 842.802.0006 1.329.324.521
Land Improvements 1.692.446 - - 11.642.381 - = 13.334.827
Buildings 181.739.102  26.222.075 (46.180) 09.081.401 305.113.114 - 612.109.506
Plant, Machinery and Equipment 407.709.104  81.933.603  (3.774.909) 41.021.900 04.293.528 51.504 591.234.730
Maotor Vehicles 19.239.051 31.416.914 (14.407) - 0.984.868 - 57.626.426
Furniture and Fixtures 26.106.201 8.660.973 (247.450) 1.311.542 1.023.441 36.854.707
Other Property. Plant and Equipment - 129.450 - - - 129.450
Leaschold Improvements 1.066.753 & - 1.066.753
Constructions in Progress 184,358.010  256.539.787 (147.560.223) - - 293.337.374
Total 1.308.270.667  404.902.802  (4.082.952) 5.659.456 1.220.217.017 51.504 2.935.018.494
Currency
Opening balance —  Current Period translation  Closing balance —
Accumulated depreciation (-) 1 January 2022 Depreciation  Disposals  Transfers  Revaluation Surplus  differences 31 December 2022
Land - - - - - - -
Land Improvements (1.086.105) (108.733) - = - - (1.194.858)
Buildings (14.668 448) (3.611.928) 46.186 - - - (20.234.190)
Plant, Machinery and Equipment (138.385.618) (37466.841)  2.151.080 588.279 - (51.505) (173.364.0605)
Motor Vehicles ( 5.853.711) (4.187.801) 5.181 - - (10.036.421)
Fumiture and Fixtures ( 8.228.188) (3.758.410) 223107 (588.279) - (12.351.770h
Other Property. Plant and Equipment - (32.146) - - - (32.1406)
Leaschold Improvements (526.560) (140.190) - - - (600.756)
Constructions in Progress - - - - S g - =
Total (168.948.636) (51.306.159)  2.425.554 - LT (FRE0ST T (217.880.746)
Net Book Value 1.139.322.031 AT T G SR 2717137748
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31.12.2021
Currency
Opening balance — translation Closing balance —
Cost I January 2021 Additions Disposals _ Transfers  Revaluation Surplus  differences 31 December 2021
Land 309.463.000 - (632.440) - 177.529.440 4806.360.000
Land Improvements 1.738.678 = (46.232) - 1.692 4406
Buildings 126.130.744 - (241.172) - 55.849.530 - 181.739.102
Plant. Machinery and Equipment 209.145.512 8.093.425 (LI57.860)  3.0611.006 07.947.697 68.004 407.709.104
Motor Vehicles 8.072.330 12.321.084 (2.578.962) - 1.423.999 - 19.239.051
Furniture and Fixtures 15.552.725 6.821.980 (618.073) 4.349 5069 - 26.106.201
Other Property. Plant and Equipment - = - - - -
Leaschold lmprovements 2.919.791 120517 (1.973.555) - - 1.066.753
Constructions in Progress 17.908.492  266.368.428 {99.918.910) - - - 184.358.010
Total 780.931.272  293.726.034  (107.167.204)  3.611.666 337.100.235 68.664 1.308.270.667
Currency

Opening balance - Current Period translation Closing balance -
Accumulated depreciation (-) | January 2021 Depreciation  Disposals Revaluation Surplus  differences 31 December 2021
Land - - - - -
Land [mprovements (1.039.025} (93.330) 46.250 - (1.086.105)
Buildings (11,781.949) (3.127.671) 241.172 - - (14.668.448)
Plant, Maclinery and Equipment (112.702.543) (26.472.243) i (505.150) (59.428) (138.585.618)

' 1.153.746
Motor Vehicles (4.988.630) (1.347.414) 482.333 - (5.853.711)
Furniture and Fixtures (7.079.343) (1.659.464) 510.619 = - (8.228.18%)
Other Property, Plant and Equipment - - - - - -
Leaschold Improvements (2.337.451) (149.008) 1.959.953 - - ( 520.560)
Constructions in Progress - - - - - - -
(139.928.941) (32.849.190) (505,150) - (39.428) (168.948.636)

Total 4.394.073

Net Book Value

641.002.331

1.139.322.031

The fair value of the investment properties included in property, plant and equipment was determined as of 26-28 December 2022 and the
changes in fair value were reflected 10 the consolidated financial statements for the period ended 31 December 2022. In the determination of the
fair values of the property, plant and equipment as of 26-28 December 2022 2022, the fair values determined as a result of the appraisal studies
carried out by Elit Gayrimenkul Degerleme A §. which 1s authorized by the Capital Markets Board for the valuation of investment properties and
those values have been reflected to the accompanying consolidated financial statements. As of 31 D ecember 2022 and 2021. the detailed
information of investment properties is as follows:

Net Book Value

2022
Appraisal Value

2022

Revaluation Surplus

Accumulated

Revaluation Surplus

Aliaga Al Tesisi

Aliaga A-2 Tesisi 1116 Ada 3-No'lu Parsel
Aliaga A-2 Tesisi 1116 Ada 4 No'lu Parsel

Aliaga A3 Tesisi
Kinik OSB Tesis
Denizli Haddchane

Denizli Kocaer Tekstil-2 Tesisi 6 Parsel

Denizli Kocaer Tekstil-2 Tes

si 5 Parsel
Aliaga 1116 Ada 16 No'lu Parsel

78.001.665
3.150.000
183.451.233
94.505.776
2.050.326
24.570.000
10.850.000
104.060.351
230.885.000

225.380.000
8.720.000
493.190.000
260.900.000
5.840.000
58.780.000
25.410.000
245.470.000
533.690.000

147.378.335
5.570.000
309.738.767
166.394.224
3.789.674
34.210.000
14.560.000
141.409.649
302.805.000

203.447.218
8.667.374
476.983.172
205.700.007
5.103.180
57.491.152
23.043.057
190.465.453
468.553.803

P

Aliaga [116 Ada 10 No'lu Parsel 1.155.000 1.155.000 - 1.039.247
Zorlu Center [stanbul 52.405.469 74.465.000 22.059.531 22.059.531
Total 785.084.820 1.933.000.000 1.147.915.180 1.662.553.194
2021 2021 Accumulated
31.12.2021 Net Book Value Appraisal Value  Revaluation Surplus Revaluation Surplus
Aliaga Al Tesist 49.038.870 78.475.000 29.436.130 56.068.882
Aliaga A-2 Tesisi 1116 Ada 3-No'lu Parsel 1.980.000 3.150.000 1.170.000 3.097.374
Aliaga A-2 Tesisi 1116 Ada 4 No'lu Parsel 111.923.326 175.505.000 63.581.674 167.244.405
Aliaga A3 Tesisi 59.579.860 93.650.000 34.070.140 39.305.783
Kk OSB Tesis 935.000 1.605.000 670.000 1.313.506
Denizli Haddehane 17.390.000 24.570.000 7.180.000 23.281.152
Denizhi Kocaer Tekstil-2 Tesisi 6 Parsel 6.935.000 10.850.000 | 8.483.057

Denizli Kocaer Tekstil-2 Tesisi 3 Parsel

Aliaga 1116 Ada 16 No'lu Parsel
Aliaga 1116 Ada 10 No'lu Parsel

63.663.974
107.710.000
1.155.000

94.370.000
170.360.000
1.155.000

= i

62.650.600 . ..

]

40,055,804
165.748.803
- 1.039.247

Total

420.311.030

653.690.000

The fair values of plant, machinery and equipment, motor vehicles and fumniture and fixtures presented under, property} pldant an

233.378.97

(5 :“"-." ; M

J A
1

514,638:013

il ;ﬁuipnmnl;ﬁuve

been determined in accordance with the appraisal report on 26-28 December 2022, In the determination of the faif values of the pfz)nt—,—_,li1acr_ljin61y
and equipment, motor vehicles and fumiture and fixtures, the fair values determined as a result of the al‘»\{slruisia_l“ studies carried out by Elit
b, T g e
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Gayrimenkul Degerleme A.S, which is authorized by the Capital Markets Board for the valuation of investment properties and those values have
been reflected to the accompanying consolidated financial statements. The revaluation surplus of plant, machinery and equipment, motor vehicles
and fumiture and fixtures are amounting to TL 64.293.528, TL 6.984.868 and TL 1.023.441, respectively (31.12.2021: TL 97.947 697, TL
1.423.999, TL 4.349.569, respectively).

Total insurance coverage on property, plant and equipment has been presented under Note 22,

The functional breakdown of depreciation and amortisation charges on property, plant and equipment have been presented under Note 30.

NOTE 19 - INTANGIBLE ASSETS

As of 31 December 2022 and 2021, the movements for intangible assets, and related depreciation are as follows:

Other intangible assets:

31.12.2022

Opening balance - Closing balance —
Cost 1 January 2022 Additions Disposals Transfers 31 December 2022
Rights 6.440.293 59.960 - 997.614 7.497.967
Development Costs 68.388.965 1.204.035 (6.773.498)  (6.657.070) 56.162.432
Total 74.829.358 1.263.995 (6.773.498) (5.659.456) 63.660.399

Opening balance —

Current Period

Closing balance —

Accumulated depreciation (-) 1 January 2022 Depreciation Disposals 31 December 2022
Rights (6.419.100) (27.913) - 6.447.013
Development Costs (51.219.425) (5.752.210) 6.582.806 50.388.829
Total (57.638.525) (5.780.123) 6.582.806 56.835.842
Net Book Value 17.190.833 6.824.557
31122021
Opening balance — Closing balance —
Cost 1 January 2021 Additions Disposals Transfers 31 December 2021
Rights 57.170.202 - (47.118.143) (3.611.666) 6.440.393
Development Costs 68.388.965 - - 638.388.965
Total 125.559.167 - (47.118.143) (3.611.666) 74.829.358
Current
Period
Opening balance — Closing balance —

Accumulated depreciation (-) 1 January 2021  Depreciation Disposals Transfers 31 December 2021
Rights (10.891.622) (125.383) 4.092.755 505.150 (6.419.100)
Development Costs (38.526.076)  (12.693.349) - (51.219.425)
Total (49.417.698)  (12.818.732) 4.092.755 505.150 (57.638.525)
Net Book Value 76.141.469 17.190.833
Goodwill:

None.

Total insurance coverage on mntangible assets has been presented under Note 22,

The functional breakdown of depreciation and amortisation charges on intangible assets have been presented under Note 30.

NOTE 20 - EMPLOYEE BENEFITS

As of 31 December 2022 and 2021, the breakdown of employee benefits is as follows:

Account Name

31.12.2022 31.12.2021

Payables to Personnel
Taxes Payable

Social Security Premiums Pavable

6.883.639:57% 3219337
3063649, ¢ 1S63.074
10:433,039 %572 736,669

Emplovee benefits, net

NOTE 21 - GOVERNMENT GRANTS

The Group is entitled to have personel employment and turquality
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20.080.327 7.519.080
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NOTE 22 - PROVISIONS, CONTINGENT LIABILITIES AND CONTINGENT ASSETS

i) Other Short Term Provisions:

Account Name 31.12,2022 31.12.2021
Provisions for Lawsuit 10.004.070 6.367.953
Provisions for Unused Vacation 4.331.549 2.249.388
Total 14.335.619 8.617.341
As of 31 December 2022 and 2021, the movements of provisions for lawsuits are as follows:

Provisions for Lawsuit: 31.12.2022 31.12.2021
Beginning of the period — 1 January 6.367.953 5.065.333
Increases during the period (Note 31) 3.941.711 2032514
Provisions no Longer Required (Note 31) (305.594) (729.894)
End of the Period - 31 December 10.004.070 6.367.953
As of 31 December 2022 and 2021, the movements of provisions for unused vacation are as follows:

Provisions for Vacation Provisions: 31.12.2022 31.12.2021
Beginning of the period — 1 January 2.249.388% 1.389.147
Increases during the period 2.082.161 860.241
End of the Period — 31 December 4.331.549 2.249.388

i) Contingent Liabilities and Contingeni Assets

None.

iii) Commitments. Mortgages and Guarantees not included in the liability;

As of 31 December 2022 and 2021, the breakdown of collateral / pledge / mortgage/bill of guarantees (“CPMB™) given

follows:

31.12.2022

by the Group is as

Original Currency

Currency Amount TL Equivalent
Letters of Guarantee Given TL 78.620.429 78.620.429
Letters of Guarantee Given EUR 9.180.073 183.003.837
Mortgages and Bill of Gurantees Given TL 230.000.000 230.000.000
Pledges Given TL 181.000.000 181.000.000
Pledges Given USD 28.250.000 528.226.975
Pledges Given EUR 6.000.000 119.609.400
Total CPMB's given, net 1.320.460.641
Letters of Guarantee Received TL 4.985.000 4.985.000
Letters of Guarantee Received UsDh 172.000 3.216.108
Total CPMB's received, net 8.201.108
31.12.2021
Original Currency

Currency Amount TL Equivalent

Letters of Guarantee Given WL 48.651.959 48.651.939
Letters of Guarantee Given UsD 130.000 1.687.075
Letters of Guarantee Given EUR L. 113.000 163.164.400
Mortgages and Bill of Gurantees Given TL 230.000.000 230.000.000
Pledges Given Ll 181.000.000 181.000.000
Pledges Given USD 28.250.000 366.614.375
Pledges Given EUR 6.000.000 88.093.800
Total CPMB's given, net 1.079.211.609
Letters of Guarantee Received TL 4.227.000 4.227.000
Letters of Guarantee Received USD 2.595.500

Total CPMB’s received, net

7001389"~~ s

6.822.500

The functional breakdown of letters of guarantee which has been provided to various institutions during the £ i e accordingly to éuemms
Group Has pbta x‘l?m_r\.o[ quamrecs for

Office, Electricity and Natural Gas distributor companies and tribunals. On the other hand, the
acquisition of raw materials and supplies which were considered as deposit.
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iv) Ratio of guarantees and mortgages 1o equity,

As of 31 December 2022 and 2021 the Group’s collateral / pledge / mortgage/bill of guarantees (“C&P&M&B™) position is as follows:

Collateral, Pledge, Mortgages, Bill of Guarantees Given by the Group 31.12.2022 31.12.2021
A. Total amount of CPMB’s given in the name of its own legal personality 428,943 602 385.650.098

B. Total amount of CPMB s given on behalt of the fully consolidated subsidiaries - -
C. Total amount of CPMB’s given on behalf of third parties for ordinary course of business * -
D. Total amount of other CPMB s given - -
1) Total amount of CPMB’s given on behalf of the majority shareholder 2 -
1) Total amount of CPMB's given to on behalf of other group companies

B 93.561.5

which are not in scope of B and C SRS N
iii) Total amount of CPMB's given on behalf of third parties which are not in scope of C - -
Total 1.320.460.641 1.079.211.609

The ratio of other CPMB’s given by the Group to its equity is 37% as of 31 December 2022 (31 December 2021 74%).
v) Total Insurance Coverage on Assets

As of 31 December 2022, total insurance coverage on property, plant and equipment is amounting to TL 1.930.415.227, USD 63.630.000 and
EUR 95.000 against wide variety of risks as collateral (31 December 2021 :TL 837.067.600, USD 32.000.000 and EUR 95.000).

NOTE 23 - COMMITMENTS
None.

NOTE 24— PROVISIONS FOR EMPLOYEE BENEFITS

31.12.2022 31.12.2021
Provision for Employment Termination Benefits 24.629.708 9.382.749
Total 24.629.708 9.382.749

Under Turkish Labour Law, Kocaer Celik and its subsidianies and associates incorporated in Turkev are required to pav termination benefits to each
employee who has completed one year of service and whose employment is terminated without due cause, who is called up for military service, dies or
retires after completing 23 years of service (20 years for women) and reaches the retirement age (58 for women and 60 for men).

As of 31 December 2022, the amount payable consists of one month's salary limited to a maximum of TL 19.982.83 (31 December 2021 TL 10.848,59)
for each year of service.

The liability is not funded as there is no funding requirement.
The provision has been calculated by estimating the present value of the future probable obligation of the Group arising from the retirement of the
employees. TAS 19 (“Employee Benefits™) requires actuarial valuation methods to be developed to estimate the enterprise's obligation under defined

benefit plans. Accordingly, the following actuarial assumptions are used in the calculation of total liabilities:

The principal assumption is that the maximum liability for each vear of service increases in line with inflation. Therefore, the discount rate applied
represents the expected real rate after adjusting for future inflation effects.

As of 31 December 2022, the provisions in the accompanying consolidated financial statements are calculated by estimating the present value of the
future probable obligation of the Group arising from the retirement of the emplovees. As of 31 December 2022, the provisions at the respective balance

sheet dates have been calculated assuming an annual inflation rate of 20% and an interest rate of 26%, resulting in a real discount rate of $%.

The movements of provisions for employment termination benefits for the period are as follows;

01.01.2022 01.01.2021
31.12.2022 31.12.2021
Beginning of the Period — 1 January 9.382.749 7.538.867
Payments During the Period (-) (2.470.648) (3.712.035)
Interest Cost 1.159.722 832.844
Service Cost 2.977.355 635519
Loss on remeasurements of defined benefit plans 1.742.536 2.319.275
Actuarial Gains/Losses 11.837.994 1.768.279
End of the Period ~ 31 December 24629708 "=, 9.382.749
-] T, Tk
f{f N .QJJ."? ":'?;_\
NOTE 25 - TAX ASSETS AND LIABILITIES lf
i
As of 31 December 2022 and 2021, the Group has no current income tax assets and liabilities. gi
i
i
\‘\I
%
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NOTE 26 - OTHER ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

As of 31 December 2022 and 2021, the breakdown of other current assets is as follows:

Account Name 31.12.2022 31.12.2021
Deferred VAT 130.303.219 -
Other current assets, net 130.303.219 -
As of 31 December 2022 and 2021, the breakdown of other current liabilities is as follows:
Account Name 31.12.2022  31.12.2021
Other VAT - 1.132.113
Expense Accruals 2.002 349.060
Other current liabilities, net 2.002 1.481.173

As of 31 December 2022 and 2021, the Group has no other non-current liabilities.
NOTE 27 - EQUITY

i) Non-Controlling Interests

From all equity account group items of subsidiaries within the scope of consolidation, including paid / issued share capital, the amounts
corresponding to the shares other than the parent company and subsidiaries are deducted and disclosed in the equity of the consolidated balance

sheet as “Non-Controlling Interests”

As of 31 December 2022 and 2021, the movements of non-controlling interests are as follows:

01.01.2022 01.01.2021
31.12.2022 31.12.2021
Beginning of the Period — 1 January 4.722.784 509.231
Business combinations, net 5.746 88.976
Changes in adjustment to share capital, net - (390.000)
Gains/(losses) on remeasurements of
defined benefit plans, net (17.546) (13.754)
Currency translation differences, net 1.980.987 1.419.262
Retained earnings, net - 325246
Profit for the period, net 4.500.257 2.783.823
End of the Period — 31 December 11.192.228 4.722.784
i) Share Capital 7 Capital Adjustments Due to Cross-Ownership
As of 31 December 2022 and 2021, the principal sharcholders and their respective shareholding rates in Kocaer Celik are as follows:
31.12.2022 31.12.2021
Share Share
Shareholders Amount (%) Amount (%)
Hakan KOCAER 520.084.989 79 169.600.000 80
Al Riza KOCAER - 42.400.000 20
Other 137.485.011 21 - -
Total share capital 657.570.000 100 212.000.000 100

Number of Shares, Class of Shares and Privileges:

The initial public offering of the Group was approved with the official circular on 16.06.2022 and the bulletin numbered 2022/30 of the Capital
Markets Board (“"CMB™). The relevant stocks of initial public offering was paid from the share capital amounting to TL 637 570.000. the aroup’s
shares amounting to TL 21.500.000 and the remaining TL 34.600.000 was paid from disposal of the shares of the sharcholders, with total amount
of TL 56.100.000. The capital increase amounting to TL 424.070.000 was realized from the emission premium that arising from after the public
initial public offering and was recognised in equity. The capital increase was published in Official Gazette numbered 10715 on 30 November

2022.

Capital Adjustments due to Cross Ownership:

None.
i) Capital Reserves

None.
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iviRestricted Reserves

The legal reserves consist of first and second legal reserves, appropriated in accordance with the Turkish Commercial Code (TCC). The TCC
stipulates that the first legal reserve is appropriated out of historical statutory profits at the rate of 5% per annum, until the total reserve reaches
20% of the Group's historical paid-in share capital. The second legal reserve is appropriated at the rate of 10% per annum of all cash distributions
in excess of 5% of the historical paid-in share capital. Under TCC, the legal reserves are not available for distribution unless they exceed 50% of
the historical paid-in share capital but may be used to oftset losses in the event that historical general reserve is exhausted.

The details of the restricted reserves are as follows:

Account Name 31.12.2022 31.12.2021
Legal Reserves 3.275.079 3.275.079
Gain on Disposal of'a Subsidiary and Property, Plant and Equipment 25.830.252 25.830.252
Total 29.105.331 29.105.331

v} Retained Earnings

As of 31 December 2022 and 2021, the functional breakdown of retained carnings is as follows:

Account Name 31.12.2022 31.12,2021
Extraordinary Reserves 1.777.367 1.777.367
Other Retained Earnings 8.225.603 (2.358.827)
The effect of carve-out consolidated financial statements 158.522.734 158.522.734
Total 168.525.704 157.941.274

vi) Share Premium
None.
vi) Accumudated Other Comprehensive Income or Expenses to be reclassified to Profit or Loss

As of 31 December 2022 and 2021, the detailed table of other comprehensive income or expenses to be reclassified to consolidated statement of
profit or loss recognised under equity is as follows:

Account Name 31.12.2022 31.12.2021
Currency translation differences 32.351.815 14.719.069
Gains/(losses) on hedges (190.938.728) (152.742.503)
Total (158.586.913) (138.023.434)

vit) Accumulated Other Compiehensive Income or Expenses not to be reciassified to Profit or Loss

As of 31 December 2022 and 2021, the detailed table of other comprehensive income or expenses not to be reclassified to consolidated statement
of profit or loss recognised under equity is as follows:

Account Name 31.12.2022 31.12,2021
Gains/losses on revaluation and remeasurement 1.736.927.929 676.474.109
Gaing/(losses) on remeasurements of defined benefit plans (12.878.239) (3.425.389)
Other - (122.000.001)
Total 1.724.049.690 551.048.719

viti) Business Combintations under Common Control

Account Name 31.12.2022 31.12.2021
Business combination under common control (16.001.044) (16.001.044)
Total (16.001.044) (16.001.044)

vifii) Equity

Account Name 31.12,2022 31.12.2021
Paid-in Share Capital 657.570.000 212.000.000
Accumulated Other Comprehensive Income Or Expenses not to be Reclassified 10 Profit Or Loss 1.724.049.690 551.048.719
Share Premium 119.699.349 -
Accumulated Other Comprehensive Income Or Expenses to be Reclassilied to Profit Or Loss o (158.586.913) (138.023.434)
Business Combinations under Common Control (16.001.044) (16.001.044)
Restricted Reserves 29.105.331 29.105.331
Retaimed Eamings %168.525.704 157.941.274
Profit for the Period 751.243.531 132.584.430
Equity holders of the parent o  3.275.605.648 928.655.276
Non-controlling interests P o ¥195.298 4.722.784
Total Equity 2} e - 3.786.797.876 933.378.060

N e |
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NOTE 28 - REVENUE AND COST OF SALES
As of 31 December 2022 and 2021, the functional breakdown of revenue and cost of sales is as follows:

01.01.2022

Account Name 31.12.2022

01.01.2021
31.12.2021

Domestic Sales

Forcign Sales

Other Revenue

Sales Returns (-)

Sales Discounts (-)

Net Sales

Cost of Sales (-)

Cost of Merchandise Sold (-)
Cost of Goods Sold (-)

Cost of Services Sold (-}
Other Cost of Sales (-)
Personnel Expenses
Depreciation and Amortisation Charges(-)

2.219.594.283
7.202.208.377
1.683.827
(1.265.346)
(3.755.538)
9.418.465.603
(7.255.786.606)
(1.189.570.458)
(5.601.935.424)
(47.173.848)
(192.1600.038)
(I8 895.814)
(43.048.024)

1.290.846.455
2.923256.813
4.894.925
(2.516.362)
(175.287)
4.216.306.544
(3.364.737.035)
(305.992.196)
(2.847.862.237)
(19.808.127)
(69.514.539)
(78.055.837)
(43.504.099}

Gross Profit 2.162.678.997

851.569.509

NOTE 29 - RESEARCH AND DEVELOPMENT EXPENSES, MARKETING, SALES AND DISTRIBUTION EXPENSES, GENERAL

ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES

As of 31 December 2022 and 2021, the functional breakdown of operating expenses is as follows:

01.01.2022 01.01.2021
Account Name 31.12.2022 31.12,2021
Marketing, Sales and Distribution Expenses (-) (564.208.421) (280.664.456)
General Administrative Expenses (-) (83.409.036) (33.026.377)
Research and Development Expenses (-) (2.911.49%) (1.806.951)
Total Operating Expenses (-) (650.528.955) (315.497.784)

NOTE 30 - EXPENSES BY NATURE

As of 31 December 2022 and 2021, the functional breakdown of marketing, sales and distribution expenses, rescarch and development expenses

and general administrative expenses recognized in expenses by nature is as follows:

01.01.2022 01.01.2021
Account Name 31.12.2022 31.12.2021
Marketing, Sales and Distribution Expenses (-) (564.208.421) (280.664.456)

Personnel expenses

Freight costs

Export costs

Transportation costs
Customs expenses
Consumable costs

Sales commission expenses

(10.734.042)
(356.638.879)
(69.589.374)
(31.261.703)
(3.793.306)
(38.345.410)
(37.830.352)

(6.512.855)
(195.885.409)
(30.720.863)
(8.732.593)
(7.338.002)
(12.940.493)
(15.172.211)

Depreciation and amortisation charges (153.145) (34.026)
Depreciation and amortisation charges — TFRS 16 (1.032.746) (756.442)
Advertising expenses (1.646.545) -
Maintenance and repair expenses (155.332) (19.384)
Information systems expenses (648.212) (169.420)
Audit and consultancy expenses (2.206.365) (40.250)
Education costs (49.657) (11.5336)
Utility expenses (73.993) (28.354)
Fair and promotion expenses (4.048.543) (137.890)
Communication expenses (121.891) (129.316)
Litigation and notary costs, fees and charges (1.488.930) (226.345)
Stationary expenses (78.609) (65.944)
Travel expenses (1.254.015) (36.623)
Insurance expenses (2.169.941) (847.373)
Fuel expenditures (337.460) (83.021)
Representation and hospitality expenses (43.742) (2.299)
Taxes, duties and charges (39.693) (1.206)
Other (466.536) (772.601)
General Administrative Expenses (-) e (83.409.036) (33.026.377)
Personnel expenses 7 e 1 W(32.198.451) (17.690.124)
Transportation costs k . ; Wi € X (7.450) (14.602)
Consumable costs : O (1.552.524) (721.178)

Depreciation and amortisation charges

| (13.608.489)
Depreciation and amortisation charges — TFRS 16 3

(9.190.291)
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Grants and donations (149.154) (150.738)
Maintenance and repair expenses (1.241.905) (519.283)
Information systems expenses (1.575.063) (462.604)
Audit and consultancy expenses (7.999.980) (2.317.470)
Education costs (533.838) (122.607)
Utility expenses (506.685) (98.585)
Communication expenses (827.343) (634.998)
Rent expenses (498 484) (257.393)
Litigation and notary costs, fees and charges (1.599.594) (141.492)
Stationary expenses (76.754) (59.649)
Travel expenses (2.263.557) (S08.625)
Insurance expenses (1.110.821) (325.549)
Fuel expenditures {1.372.841) (313.619)
Representation and hospitality expenses (459.793) (164,080)
Taxes, duties and charges (1.659.134) (415.098)
Other (4.976.885) (1.270.271)
Research and Development Expenses (-) (2.911.498) (1.806.951)
Personnel expenses (2.094.874) (1.274.158)
Depreciation and amortisation charges (276.624) (97.504)
Other (540.000) (435.289)
Total Operating Expenses (-), net (650.528.955) (315.497.784)

The functional breakdown of depreciation and amortisation charges recognized under consolidated statement of profit or loss is as follows:

01.01.2022 01.01.2021
Account Name 31.12.2022 31.12.2021
Cost of Sales (-) (43.048.024) (43.504.099)
Marketing, Sales and Distribution Expenses (-) (1.185.891) (790.468)
General Administrative Expenses (-) (22.798.780) (6.828.412)
Rescarch and Development Expenses (-) (276.624) (97.504)
Total (67.309.319) (51.220.483)

The functional breakdownsof personnel expenses recognized under consolidated statement of profit or loss is as follows:

01.01.2022 01.01.2021
Account Name 31.12.2022 31.12.2021
Cost of Sales (-) (181.898.814) (78.055.837)
Marketing, Sales and Distribution Expenses (-) (10.734.042) (6.512.8535)
General Administrative Expenses (-) (32.198.451) (17.690.124)
Research and Development Expenses (-) (2.094.874) (1.274.158)
Total (226.926.181) (103.532.974)
NOTE 31 - OTHER OPERATING INCOME / (EXPENSES)
As of 31 December 2022 and 2021, the functional breakdown of other operating income/expenses is as follows:
01.01.2022 01.01.2021
Account Name 31.12.2022 31.12.2021
Other Operating Income 77.959.894 512.111.934
Provisions No Longer Required (Doubtful receivables) 9.385.730 679.453
Provisions No Longer Required (Lawsuits) 305594 729.894
Provisions No Longer Required (Inventory) 278.739 -
Rent [ncome 2.080.907 1.632.924
Foreign Exchange Gains 53.323.774 503.972.339
Income arising from government grants - 1.975.594
Income arising from Insurance Compensation and Claims %.268.189 2.100
[ncome arising from lawsuit compensations 2.666.449 -
Other 1.650.512 3.119.630
Other Operating Expenses (-) (186.017.579) (86.266.404)
Provisions for Doubtful Receivables (5.588.412) (8.709,982)
Provisions for Lawsuits (3.941.711) (2.032.514)

Provisions for Inventory Impairment

Foreign Exchange Losses

Expenses arising from grants and donations
Expenses arising from compensations and penalties
Discount expenses

Expenses arising from current account closures
Expenses arising from repatriation of capital

Other

’*::; (165.944.711)
e (1.600.336)

1.517.534)

w  A1.834.469)

(278.739)
(54.634.617)
(599.108)
(14.123.287)
(514.863)

(5.023.685)
(349.609)

Other Operating Income/(Expenses), (Net) ot (H08.057.685)

425.845.530
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NOTE 32 - GAINS/ (LOSSES) FROM INVESTMENT ACTIVITES

As of 31 December 2022 and 2021, the functional breakdown of gains and losses from investment activities is as follows:

01.01.2022 01.01.2021
Account Name 31.12.2022 31.12.2021
Gains from Investment Activities 217.147.385 29.688.367
Gam on Sale of Property, Plant and Equipment and Intangible Assets 1.965.096 7.733.367
Investment Properties Revaluation Surplus 93.741.697 21.955.000
Gain on Sale of Securities 121.440.592 -
Losses from Investment Activities (-) (129.913) (887.293)
Loss on Sale of Property, Plant and Equipment and Intangible Assets - (887.293)
Loss on Sale of Securities (950) -
Provision for Impairment of Investment in a Subsidiary (128.963) -
Gains/(Losses) from Investment Activities, (Net) 217.017.472 28.801.074
NOTE 33 - FINANCIAL INCOME / EXPENSES
As of 31 December 2022 and 2021, the functional breakdown of financial income and expenses is as follows:

01.01.2022 01.01.2021
Account Name 31,12.2022 31.12.2021
Financial Income 100.122.223 23.604.999
[nterest Income 22.777.354 10.415.921
Foreign Exchange Gains 40.459.504 5.819.833
Interest Income arising from Group Companies and Shareholders 36.885.305 7.369.245
Financial Expenses (-) (908.545.865) (834.069.235)
Interest Expenses (226.778.756) (80.968.520)
Foreign Exhange Losses (641.231.432) (735.337.340)
Interest Expenses arising from Group Companies and Sharcholders - (623.474)
Bank Comissions, Fees and Charges (35.175.987) (15.391.289)
Interest expense anising from TFRS 16 (3.359.690) (624.579)
Other - (1.124.033)
Financial Income/(Expenses), (Net) (808.423.642) (810.464.236)

NOTE 34 - NON-CURRENT ASSETS HELD FOR SALE

None.
NOTE 35 - INCOME TAXES

The Group’s tax expense (or income) consists of current period corporate income tax expense and deferred tax expense or income and the
functional breakdown of income taxes is as follows:

01.01.2022 01.01.2021
Account Name 31.12.2022 31.12.2021
Cwrrent pertod tax expense (140.541.822) (34.547.405)
Deferred tax income/expense 83.599.423 (10.338.488)
Total tax income/(expense) (56.942.399) (44.885.893)

i) Corporate Tax

The Group, its subsidiaries and associates operating in Turkey. are subject to the tax legislation and practices in force in Turkey. Provisions have
been allocated in the accompanying consolidated financial statements for the estimated tax liabilities of the Group regarding the current period
operating results.

Account Name 31.12.2022 31.12.2021
Current period tax expense 133.697.661 34.547 405
Less: Prepaid income tax (109.566.703) (15.897.564)
Current income tax liabilities, net 24.130.958 18.649.841

Turkey the joint-stock companies, corporation tax and non-responsible for the income tax and who are resident in Turkey, those made to those
except for exempt and non-natural persons and dividend payments to legal persons not resident in Turkey are subject to 15% income tax.
Dividend payments by resident corporations to resident joint-stock company in Turkey again in Turkey gre fiot subject o income tax. In addition,
if the profit is not distributed or added to the capital, the income tax is not calculated.
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Corporate Tax Rates:

As of 31 December 2022, corporation Tax rate applied in Turkey is 23% (31 December 2021: 25%). In the Official Gazette dated April 22,2021
and numbered 31462, the Law No. 7316 on the procedure for the collection of public receivables and Law Amending Certain Laws has been
published and the Provisional Article 13 has been added to the Corporate Tax Law with the 11th article of the stated Law. Corporate tax rate of
20% with the added item will ve applied as 23% for corporate eamings for the 2021 taxation period and 23% for corporate carnings for the 2022
taxation period,

In the Official Gazette dated 17.11.2020, amendments were made regarding both tax regulations and other regulations. As per Article 35 of the
Law No. 7256 on Restructuring of Some Receivables and Amending Some Laws (“Law No 72567). published in the Official Gazette dated 17
November 2020 effective from 1/1/2021. For the institutions at least 20% of whosc shares are offered to the public to be traded in Borsa Istanbul
Equity Market for the first time, the corporate tax rate will be applied at a 2 point discounted rate for 5 accounting periods starting from the fiscal
period during which their shares are offered to the public for the first time. However, the above mentioned discount on corporate tax rate is not
applicable for banks, leasing companies, factoring companies, financing companies, payment and electronic money institutions, authorized
foreign exchange institutions, asset management companies, capital market institutions, insurance and reinsurance companies and pension
companies. In case the condition disclosed in the aforementioned paragraph regarding the share ratio is lost within § accounting periods starting
from the accounting period benefiting from the discount, taxes that are not accrued on time due 1o the reduced tax rate application are collected
together with delay interest without any tax loss penalty.

According to Turkish Corporate Tax Law, losses can be carried forward to offset the future taxable income for a maximum period of § years. On
the other hand, such losses cannot be carried back to offset prior vears profits.

Accordmg to corporate tax law article numbered 24. the corporate tax is imposed by the taxpaver’s tax returns. In Turkey, there 1s no procedure
for a final and definitive agreement on tax assessments. Companies file their corporate tax returns between 1-30 April following the close of the
accounting year. Tax authorities may, however, examine such returns and the underlying accounting records and may revise assessments within
five years.

Dividend payments by resident corporations to resident joint-stock company in Turkey again in Turkey are not subject to income tax. In addition,
if the profit is not distributed or added to the capital, the income tax is not calculated. Dividend income (excluding profits from investment funds
‘participation certificates and investment trusts' shares) obtained from participating in the capital of another corporation which is fully taxpayed is
exempt from corporation tax.

The Group has been capitalised basic incentives and supports set forth under the Law No. 5746 pertaining the Support of Research and
Development Activities for the R&D invesunent projects in its legal records. 100% of all eligible R&D and innovation expenditures made within
technology centres, R&D centres (which should employ at least 15 (may increase to 30 for specific sectors) full-time equivalent R&D personnel),
R&D and innovation projects supported by governmental institutions, foundations established by law, or international funds and design
expenditures made within design centres (which should employ at least 10 full-time equivalent design personnel) and design projects supported
by the above institutions can be deducted from the corporate income tax base in accordance with the necessary calculations which has been
reflected in the accompanying consolidated financial statements.

As of 31 December 2022 and 2021, provision for income tax has been calculated is as follows:

31.12.2022 31.12.2021
Operating Profit / 624.191.542 207.843.640
Tax Base Additions 641.254.044 69.040.558
Non-deductible expenses 641.254.044 6Y.040.558
Offset from Retained Earnings (-) - (2.802.137)
Tax Allowances and Deductions (-) (574.297.079) (135.260.187)
Exemption from gain on sale of securities (732.057) -
Foreign exchange protected time deposits (2.407.751) -
Depreciation and amortization charges (1.224.154) -
Exemption from donations to healthcare organizations and facilities (183.717) =

Exemption from gain on emission premium (CTL article numbered 5/1-C) (569.750.000) -
Exemption from Kocaer Tekstil capital increase = (42.21H0.000)
75% exemption from gain on disposal of a subsidiary and brand sales (Y3.050.187)

Operating Profit, net (domestic) 634.880.151 138.821.875
Operating Profit, net (foreign) 56.268.357 29.909.385
Current period tax expense, net (145.225.911) (34.547.405)
Tax deductions arising from production activities (1%) 4.684.089 -

(140.541.822) (34.547.405)

Income Withholding Tax:

In addition to the corporate tax, it is required to caleulate income tax withholding on any dividends, except for those distributed to all taxpayer
entities and Turkish branches of foreign companies gaining dividend for such distribution and declaring these dividends within the corporate
profit, The rate of income withholding tax implemented as 10% between 24 April 2003 and 22 Jul 2006 The rateof withholding tax has been
increased from 10% 1o 15% upon the Cabinet decision No: 2006/10731, which was published in Offici lGa{cg‘ie"'oll_JLlljff‘QS‘ 2006. Undistributed
dividends incorporated in share capital are not subject to income tax withholding. In accordanee with'the deciSion of Cabinet numbered 2009-
14592 dated 12 January 2009, the rate has been applied as 15%. Undistributed dividends incqﬁ)omﬂ_cd b}sh&l{e‘ capital are not subject to income
tax withholding. R e 5
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ii) Deferred Tax

The deferred tax asset and tax liability is based on the temporary differences, which arise between the financial statements prepared according to
TAS and statutory tax financial statements. These differences usually due to the recognition of revenue and expenses in different reporting
periods for the TAS and tax purposes, the differences explained as below.

As of 31 December 2022, corporation tax rate applied in Turkey is 23%. In the Official Gazette dated April 22, 2021 and numbered 31462, the
Law No. 7316 on the procedure for the collection of public receivables and Law Amending Certain Laws has been published and the Provisional
Article 13 has been added to the Corporate Tax Law with the 11th article of the stated Law. Corporate tax rate of 20% with the added item will ve
applied as 25% for corporate earnings for the 2021 taxation period and 23% for corporate earnings for the 2022 taxation period. The deferred tax
rate has been used as 25%, 23% and 20% on the basis of the separate adjustment item by estimating the end of the 31 December 2021 of
temporary differences. The breakdown of cumulative temporary differences and deferred tax assets and Habilities provided using principal tax

rates are as follows:

Account Name

Depreciation and amortisation

Reversal of capitalised financing costs

Reversal of revaluation fund 7326

PP&E Revaluation Surplus (Land and Buildings)
PP&E Revaluation Surplus (Buildings)

PP&E Revaluation Surplus (Machinery, Furniture and
fixtures, Leasehold improvements, Motor vehicles)
[nvestment Properties Revaluation Surplus
Employment Termination Benefits

Provisions for Doubtful Receivables

Provisions for Lawsuits

Provisions for Loan Interest

Provisions for Unused Vacation

Adjustments for TFRS 16 Leases

[nventory impairment

Elimination of profit in inventory

Discount on Notes Receivables

Adjustments for derivative instruments
Adjustments for derivative nstruments

Cumulative Deferred Tax
Temporary Assets/
Differences (Liabilities)
31.12.2022 31.12.2021 31.12.2022 31.12.2021
59.195.854 29.042.925 11.839.170 5.808.585
306.440.571 172.166.313 61.288.115 34.433.263
474.664.777 122.000.002 94.932.955 24.400.000

(1.316.242.963)
(346.310.231)

(315.461.553)
(139.602.107)
24.629.708
14.951.524
10.004.070
4.005.977
4.331.549
1.038.220

(807.345)
1.517.534
(149.090.954)
27.034.887

(473.440.897)
(41.197.117)

(243.159.716)
(45.860.410)
9.030.497
20.539.049
6.367.953
(1.818.144)
2.230.330
632.480
278.739

(236.121.026)

7.334873

(131.624.296)
(69.262.046)

(63.092.311)
(27.920.421)
4.925.942
3.139.820
2.100.855
841.255
909.625
218.026

(169.542)
318.682
(29.898.883)
5.136.629

(47.344.090)
(8.239.423)

(48.631.943)
(9.172.082)
1.806.099
5.134.762
1.591.988
(454.536)
557.583
126.496
69.685

(59.030.257)

1.833.725

Capitalised policy interest recognised as an expense 4403211 924.674

Adjustments for Sale and Leaseback Arrangements 73.307.313 215.467.574 15.394.536 53.866.894
Adjustments for internal rate of return 32.046 (2.318.103) 6.730 (579.526)
Adjustments for gain on sale of securities 8.991.850 - 1.888.289 -
Adjustments for currency translation differences (5.003.190) (26.718.890) (1.050.673) (6.679.723)
[nterest and currency translation differences arising from

sale and leascback arrangements 167.395.437 155.962.004 33.479.088 31.192.399
Other - 2.042.173 510.542

Deferred Tax Assets / (Liabilities), net

(85.673.781)

(18.799.558)

Movements in deferred tax assets/(lLiabilities) are as follows:

01.01.2022 01.01.2021
31.12.2022 31.12.2021
Beginning of the period - 1 January (18.799.558) 11.930.390
Deferred tax income/expense during the period, net §3.599.423 (18.092.669)
PP&E Revaluation Surplus (159.763.197) (38.497.197)
Additions arising from Derivative Instruments 6.921.951 25.510.067
Actuarial Gains/Losses on Deferred Tax, net 2.367.600 349851
End of the period — 31 December (85.673.781) (18.799.558)
Reconciling the effective current period tax expense and profit for the period is as follows:
31.12.2022 31.12.2021
Profit Before Tax 839.720.606 180.254.146
Tax calculated at domestic tax rate (21%) (176.414.877) (45.063,537)

Nen-deductible expenses

Gains on tax allowances and deductions
Tax rate differences/changes

Other

(134.784.876)

252.258.196

©1.999.158

(17.251.767)
27.987.536
(10.558.125)

Tax income/(expense)

(44.885.893)
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CONVENIENCE TRANSLATION INTO ENGLISH OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS ORIGINALLY

ISSUED IN TURKISH

KOCAER CELIK SANAYI VE TICARET ANONIM SiRKETI

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AS AT AND FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022
(Amounts are expressed in Turkish Lira unless otherwise indicated.)

NOTE 36 - EARNINGS PER SHARE

Basic eamings per share is calculated by dividing the net profit for the year attributable to ordinary sharcholders by the weighted average number
of ordinary shares outstanding during the ycar. Accordingly, the weighted average number of shares used in earnings per share calculation as of

31 December 2022 and 2021, which is as follows:

01.01.2022 01.01.2021
Account Name 31.12.2022 31.12.2021
Profit for the Period 751.243.531 132.584.430
Weighted Average Number of Shares 259.679.918 212.000
Earnings Per Share 2.8930 625.3983
NOTE 37 - RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES
a)  Related party balances are as follows:
Other Trade Other
31.12.2022 Trade Receivables Receivables Pavables Payables
Other - 28.371.976 - 2.268.637
Kocaer Tekstil Sanayi ve Ticaret A § - 3.330.794 - -
Chakra Magazacihk Ticaret ve A S 239.835 20.088.711 106.799 -
Kocaer Metal Sanavi A S - 75.347 1.014.352 8
TOTAL 239,835 51.866.828 1,121.151 2.268.637
Other Trade Other
31.12,2021 Trade Receivables Receivables Payables Pavables
Other - 19.538.758 - 10.929.650
Kocaer Tekstil Sanayi ve Ticaret A S, - 25.737.301 - -
Chakra Magazacilik Ticaret ve A.S 565.477 14.304.587 - 1.830.165
Kocaer Celik Endustrisi Sanayi ve Ticaret A S ( Kocaer
Metal Sanayi A $. in 2021) 65.529 74.352 648.716 -
KCR Tekstil A.S - 377213418 - -
TOTAL 631.006 436.868.416 648.716 12.759.815
b)  Related party transactions are as follows:
31.12.2022
Other
Services
/Currency
Goods and translation
Purchases Services Rent Interest differences Total
Kocaer Tekstil Sanayi ve Ticaret A.$ - - - 84.102 84.102
Chakra Magazacihk Ticaret Ve A S. - 2.500 149.400 151.900
Kocaer Metal Sanavi A S 21.333 370.000 391.333
Total - 23.833 603.502 624.729
OtherServices
/
Currency
Goods and translation
Sales Services Rent Interest differences Total
Kocaer Tekstil Sanayi ve Ticaret A S B 1.800.000 2.562.805 4.326.789 8.680.594
Chakra Magazacihk Ticaret Ve A § - - 1.951.438 381.946 2.333.384
KCR Tekstil A S - - 30.698.499 - 30.698.499
Kocaer Metal Sanay1 A S. - 9.000 - - 9.000
Ibrahim Kocaer - 78.000 - 5.169 83.169
Hakan Kocaer - 66.000 1.672.563 - 1.738.563
Total - 1.953.000 36.885.305 4.713.904 43.552.209
31.12.2021
Other
services/Currency
Goods and translation
Purchases Services Rent Interest - differences Total
Kocaer Tekstil Sanayi ve Ticaret AS 3.747 97.481 514.863. . 200810 636.901
Chakra Magazacilik Ticaret Ve A.S. 149.786 43813 R V0T 706 194,305
Kocaer Metal Sanayi A.S - 36.000 g T o=y 36.000
Total 153.533 177.294 514.863 21516 : 867.206
ATANE
% e
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OtherServices/

Currency

translation
Sales Goods and Services Rent Interest differences Total
Kocaer Tekstil Sanayi ve Ticaret A § 1.565.006 1.114.691 7.170.855 - 9.889.723
Chakra Magazacilik Ticaret Ve A S. 356.135 - - 1.071.654 1.427.789
KCR Tekstil A.S - - - 377.202.308 377.202.308
Total 1.921.141 1.114.691 7.170.855 378.273.962 388.519.820

¢)  Key Management Compensation:
01.01.2022 01.01.2021

Account Name 31.12.2022 31.12.2021
Key Management Compensation 7.425.735  2.702.455
Total 7.425.735  2.702.455

NOTE 38 - NATURE AND LEVEL OF RISKS DERIVED FROM FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Capital risk management

The Group, while trying to maintain the continuity of its activities in capital management on one hand, aims to increase its profitability by using
the balance between debts and resources on the other hand. The capital structure of the Group consists of cash and cash equivalents explained in
note 6, borrowings explained in note § and equity items containing respectively issued share capital, capital reserves, profit reserves and profits of
previous years explained in note 27. Risks, associated with each capital class, and the senior management evaluates the capital cost. It is aimed
that the capital structure will be stabilized by means of new borrowings or repaying the existing debts as well as dividend payments and new
share issuances based on the senior management evaluations.

The Group monitors capital on the basis of the net financial debt/total equity ratio. This ratio calculated as dividing net debt by total capital. Net
debt 1s calculated by deducting cash and cash equivalents from the total debt amount (includes financial payables and liabilities, finance leases
and trade payables as disclosed in the consolidated balance sheet). Total capital is calculated as equity, as presented in the consolidated balance
sheet, plus net debt.

General strategy based on the Group’s equity does not differ trom the previous period The Group’s overall risk management strategy focuses on
the unpredictability of financial markets and targets to minimise potential adverse effects on the Group’s financial performance.

Consolidated net financial debt/invested capital ratios as of 31 December 2022 and 2021 are as follows:

31.12.2022 31.12.2021
Total borrowings 4.014.679.318 2.527472.815
Less: Cash and cash equivalents (466.548.977) (310.435.432)
Net financial debt 3.548.130.341 2.217.037.383
Equity 3.286.797.876 933.378.060
Invested capital 6.834.928.217 3.150.415.443
Net financial debt/invested capital ratio 0.5191 0.7037

Foreign exchange risk
Foreign exchange risk arises from the fact that the Group has liabilities denominated in USD, EURO and GBP,

FForeign exchange transactions result in foreign exchange risk arising from foreign exchange denominated assets and liabilities into Turkish Lira.
The Group’s exposure to foreign exchange risk arises trom its Joans, receivables and pavables denominated in foreign currencies. In order to
minimize this risk, the Group monitors its financial position and cash inflows / outflows with detailed cash flow statements as of 31 December
2022. Derivative financial instruments are also used as instruments for currency risk management for hedging purposes, when needed. Assets and
liabilities denominated in foreign currency are as follows:
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CONVENIENCE TRANSLATION INTO ENGLISH OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS ORIGINALLY
ISSUED IN TURKISH

KOCAER CELIK SANAYT VE TICARET ANONIM SiRKETI

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AS AT AND FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022
(Amounis are expressed in Turkish Lira unless otherwise indicated.)

The following table details the Group’s foreign curreney sensitivity as at 31 December 2022 and 2021 for the changes at the rate of 10%:

Exchange Rate Sensitivity Analysis Table

31.12.2022
Profit / (Loss)
Appreciation of Foreign Depreciation of Foreign
Currency Currency
Change in USD against TL by 10%
1- USD Net Asset / Liability 13.848 408 (13.848.408)
2- Hedged portion of USD Risk (-) % &
3- USD Net Effect (1+2) 13.848.408 (13.848.408)
Change in EUR against TL by 0%
4- EURO Net Asset / Liability (4.258.596) 4.258.596
5- Hedged portion of Euro Risk (-) - =
6- EURO Net Effect (4+5) (4.258.596) 4.258.596
Change in GBP against TL by 10%
7- GBP Net Asset / Liability 1.286.861 (1.286.861)
8- Hedged portion of GBP Risk (-) - -
9- GBP Net Effect (7+8) 1.286.861 (1.286.861)
TOTAL 10.876.673 (10.876.673)

Exchange Rate Sensitivity Analysis Table

31.12.2021
Profit / (Loss)
Appreciation of Foreign Depreciation of Foreign
Currency Currency
Change in USD against TL by 10%
1- USD Net Asset/ Liability (72.181.423) 72.181.423
2- Hedged portion of USD Risk (-) - %
3- USD Net Effect (1+2) (72.181.423) 72.181.423
Change in EUR against TL by 10%
4- EURO Net Asset / Liability (36.621.913) 36.621.913
5- Hedged portion of Furo Risk (-) - -
6- EURO Net Effect (4+5) (36.621.913) 36.621.913
Change in GBP against TL by 10%
7- GBP Net Asset / Liability (188.067) 185.067
8- Hedged portion of GBP Risk (-) & -
9- GBP Net Effect (7+8) (188.067) 188.067
TOTAL (108.991.403) 108.991.403

Interest rate risk
The Group is exposed interest rate risk arising from the rate changes on interest-bearing liabilities and assets. The Group manages this risk
by balancing the repricing terms of interest-bearing assets and liabilities with fixed and floating interest such as time deposits (Note 6) and

short-long term nature of borrowings (Note 8) as well as using derivative instruments for hedging purposes.

As of 31 December 2022 and 2021, interest position table of the Group is as follows;

31.12.2022 31.12.2021
Fixed Interest Rate Financial Instruments
Financial Assets 192.183.882 82.328.103
Financial Liabilities 1.906.791.194 1.737.020.138
Floating Interest Rate Financial Instruments
Financial Assets - g -

| - ST » =
Financial Liabilities - _‘;f."'-_}_:‘ ;
o g G 3 5 in e -,
Equity securities and other related risks related financial instruments / xS WA A D
£¥ & )

The Group does not have any securities and similar financial assets sensitive to changes in fair value. ; 4

Credil risk management

Holding financial instruments also carries the risk of the other parnty not meeting the requirements ot the agreement. The Group's collection

risk mainly arises from its trade receivables. Trade receivables are evaluated by taking into consideration the Group’s accaunting policies
and procedures and accordingly, net of doubtful receivables provisions are allocated in the consolidated balance sheet{(Note 10). .~
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As of 31 December 2022 and 2021, the exposure of consolidated financial asset to credit risk is as follows:

CREDIT RISK DETAILS IN RESPECT OF FINANCIAL INTRUMENT TYPES

Receivables
Trade Receivables Other Receivables
31.12.2022 Related Party Other Related Party Other Notes  Bank Deposits Notes
Maximum exposure to credit risk as of 239.835  1.291.533.655 51.866.828  106.088.178
reporting date (A+B+C+D+E) K14 AGIAGY 6
- Maximum risk secured with guarantees ete - 776968232 - - 10-11 =
F i a8 3 239.835 2091.533.655 5 828 (088,178 .
A. Net book value of neither past due nor 39.835 1.291.533 655 51.866.828 106.088.178 10-11 466.477 469 6

impaired financial assets

B. Conditions are renegotiated otherwise, net
book value of past due but not impaired - - - - 10-11 6
financial assets

C. Net book value of past due but not

impaired financial assets ) . . ~ 1

- Secured with guarantees - - - - 10-11 6
D. Net book value of impaired assets - - - - 10-11

- Past due (gross book value) - 18.116.340 - - 10-11 6

- Impairment (-) - (18.116.340) - - 10-11 6

- Secured with guarantees - - - 10-11 6

Receivables
Trade Receivables Other Receivables
Related Related ; e

AR Party Other Party Other Notes Bank Deposits Aiges
Maximum exposure to credit risk as of reporting
date (A+B+C+D+E) 631.006  521.056.596  436.868.416  55.236.021 10-11 310.385.565 6

- Maximum risk secured with guarantees ete - 416.845.277 - - 10-11 -
A .\'e.t hon-k valt_m of neither past due nor i i 7 110,385 565 6
impaired financial assets 631.006 521.056.596  436.868.416 55.236.021 10-11
B. Conditions are renegotiated otherwise, net book
value of past due but not impaired financial assets - - - - 10-11 6
C. Net book value of past due but not impaired
financial assets - - - - 10-11

- Secured with guarantees = - - - 10-11 6
D. Net book value of impaired assets - - - - 10-11

- Past due (gross book value) - 21.913.658 - - 10-11 6

- Impairment (-) - (21.9]13.658) - - 10-11 6

- Secured with guarantees - - - - 10-11 6

Liqudity risk management

The Group tries to manage the liquidity risk by maintaining the continuation of sufficient funds and loan reserves by means of matching the
financial instruments and terms of labilities by following the cash flow regularly.

Liquidity risk statements

Liquidity risk is the risk that a Group will be unable to meet its funding needs. Prudent liquidity risk imanagement is to provide sufficient
cash and cash equivalents, to enable funding with the support of credit limits provided by reliable credit institutions and to close funding
deficit. The Group provides funding by balancing cash inflows and outflows through the provision of credit lines ir Lkg-.—hﬁsmem
environment,

Undiscounted contractual cash flows of the derivative and non-derivative consolidated financial liabilities in TL as’ dt 3[ Dw ﬁhg.r 2(}2‘?
and 2021 are as follows: L
31.12.2022 gl
Total b
Carrying  Contractual B4
Value Cash Outflow Demand or up to 3 months m‘pnths £ oo oui P Y. ‘
Non-Derivative Financial Liabilities 2931615442 3.761.977.952 1.929.541.638 957. 780‘91}“" 874.655. nl /f
Bank Borrowings 1.743.328 362 1.774.980.124 283.170.962  1.337.888. ]U"%“‘}ﬁm
Finance Lease Liabilities 163.462.432 171.683.332 24911116 73445113 73:327, IU_v
Lease Liabilities 103.098.272 107.880.405 1.316.307 3948920 102615178
Trade Pavables 834.168.945 N54.168 945 834165945 - -
Other Pavables 67.3557.031 673557031 67.357.031 £ e
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31.12.2021

Total

Contractual
Carrying Cash 4-12 1-5
Value Outflow Demand or up to 3 months months years
Non-Derivative Financial Liabilities 2.244.395.612 2.314.444.490 1.031.144.002 866.745.489 416.554.999
Bank Borrowings 1.315.006.344  1.570.452.677 510214081 763.007.940 297 230.656
Finance Lease Liabilities 222.013.794  235.682.435 35408266 102.778.62] 97495548
Lease Liabilities 22173462 23.107.366 319.643 958928 21.828.795
Trade Pavables 437.769.784 4377697854 437.769.784 - -
Orther Pavables 47432228 47.432.228 47432 228 . -

Fair value of financial assets and liabilities

Fair value is the amount for which a financial mstrument could be exchanged, or a liability settled between, willing parties during current
transaction, other than in a forced sale or liquidation, and is best evidenced through a quoted market price, if one exists. Foreign currency
denominated receivables and payables are revalued with the exchange rates valid as of the date of the consolidated financial statements,

The following methods and assumptions are used Lo estimate the fair values of financial instruments:

Financial Assets

The carrying values of cash and cash equivalents including cash in hand and demand deposits, acerued interests and other financial assets
are considered to approximate their respective carrying values due to their short-term nature and insignificant credit risk. The carrying
values of trade receivables after deduction of provision for doubtful receivables are considered to approximate their respective carrying
values.

Financial Liabilities

The fair values of trade payables and other monetary liabilities are considered to approximate their respective carrving values due to their
short-term nature. The fair values of the bank borrowings after discount are considered to be approximate to their cotresponding carrving
values. Bank loans are expressed with discounted cost and transaction costs are added to the initial cost of the loan. The fair values of the
loans after discount are considered to be approximate to their corresponding carrying values. In addition, it is considered that the fair values
of the trade payables are approximate to their respective carrying value due to their short-term nature.

NOTE 39 - FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (FAIR VALUE DISCLOSURES AND HEDGE ACCOUNTING)

The fair values of financial instruments are considered to approximate their respective carrying values.

Financial Instruments and Financial Risk Management

The Group is exposed to variety of financial risks due to its operations. These risks inelude credit risk, market risk (forcign exchange risk,
interest rate risk at fair value. price risk) credit risk, cash flow interest rate risk and liquiditv risk. The Group’s overall risk management
strategy focuses on the unpredictability of financial markets and targets to minimise potential adverse effects on the Group’'s financial
performance. The Group also uses derivative instruments and forward contracts to hedge risk exposures.

Fair Value of Financial Instruments

Fair value is the amount for which a financial instrument could be exchanged, or a liability settled between, willing parties during current
transaction, other than in a forced sale or liquidation, and is best evidenced through a quoted market price, if one exists.

The Group determined fair value of financial instruments by using available market information and appropriate valuation methods.
However, evaluating the market information and forecasting the real values requires interpretation. As a result, the estimates presented
herein are not necessarily indicative of the amounts the Group could realize in a current market exchange.

The following methods and assumptions are used to estimate the fair value of each financial instrument for which it is practicable to
estimate fair value.

Monetary assets

respective carrying values due to their short-term nature and insignificant credit risk. The carrying values of trade reeifvable
. . Bt . - . Z 5 : i 3 ks iR
deduction of provision for doubtful receivables are considered to approximate their respective carrying values.

L

Monetary liabilities

The fair values of trade payables and other monetary liabilities are considered to approximate their respective carrying i’f&:aluesxdue ta
e 3

bt | R
theirs, s
X

short-term nature.

L e

, b ] el
Fair value is the amount for which a financial instrument could be exchanged in a current transaction between willing parties, dther than ina
foreed sale or liquidation, and s best evidenced by a quoted market price, if one exists :
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CONVENIENCE TRANSLATION INTO ENGLISH OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS ORIGINALLY
ISSUED IN TURKISH

KOCAER CELIK SANAYI VE TICARET ANONIM SIRKETI

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AS AT AND FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022
(Amounis are expressed in Turkish Lira unless otherwise indicated.)

Estimated fair values of financial instruments have been determined by the Group by using available market information and appropriate
valuation methodologies. However, judgment is necessarily required to interpret market data. Accordingly, estimates presented herein are
not necessarily indicative of the amounts the Group could realise in a current market exchange.

Iinancial assets

The carrying values of financial assets including cash and cash equivalents are carried at cost which is considered to approximate their
respective carrying values due to their short-term nature and insignificant credit risk. The carrying values of trade receivables after
deduction of provision for doubtful receivables are considered to approximate their respective carrying values.

Debt and equity securities are carried at fair value in accordance with the market prices, if one exists.

The classification of the Group’s censolidated financial assets and liabilities at fair value is as follows:

Level 1t Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities: The fair value of financial assets and financial
liabilities are determined with reference to quoted market prices.

Level 2: Inputs other than quoted prices included within level | that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly (that is, as prices)
or indirectly (that is, derived from prices):

Level 3: Inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data.

NOTE 40 - EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

None.

NOTE 41 - THE OTHER MATTERS WHICH SUBSTANTIALLY AFFECT THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS OR ARE REQUIRED TO BE DESCRIBED IN TERMS OF MAKING THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS CLEAR, INTERPRETABLE AND UNDERSTANDABLE

None.
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